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K.J. & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants §  Pulchowk, Lalitpur

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AVIYAN LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have sudied the accompanying financial statemems of Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha
Limited {"Microfinance’) which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2080
(July 16, 20Z3), the Staremant of Prafit of Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement af Cash Flows for the year then anded on that
dote. and & summary of the significant accounting policles and other explanatory information
(hereatter nelerred 1o a8 “the Financial Smtements”).

In aur apinion and to the best of our nformation and according o the éxplanations given 1o ua, the
afaresaid financial statements presents farly, in all materlal respects, the financial position of the
Microfinance, as at Ashad 31, 2080 (Jufy 16, 2023) end its financial parformance, changes inequity,
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting polcies and other
explanatory information, In accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards. with -afowed
canveouts, comply with Company Act, 2083 and Bank and Financial institution Act, 2073

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial staternents in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing
(MSAs). Our responsitililes wunder those Standards are furmer described In the Auditors
Responsibiities for the Asdit of the Financial Statemants section of our report. We are independent
of the Microfinance |n accordance with the Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional
ACCOUNIAntS isasad by the Institute of Chartersd Accauntarts of Nepal (ICAN), and wa tave fulfified
our othed ethical responsiblities in accordance with the ICAN'S Handbook of The Code of Ethics far
Piofessional Accountants. We befieve that the mids evidence we have obtained = sufficien and
appropriale to pravide  basis for our audit opinion on the financial aterements

Key Audit Matters: Gur asscssmant of risks of materlal misstatement

Key sudd matiers pre those matiers that, In our prolessional judgement, were of most signifcance
in audit of the financiel statements of curent period. These matiers wene addreasad in the contex
of our sudit of the financial staterments as 8 whole, and in farming our oplaicen thedeon, and we do nal
provide & separaie opinion on thepe matters, We have determined the matters described below 1o be
this by siadkt matiers 1o be communicated in oul mepart

infermation Technalogy (IT) System
Tha Information  Technology of the | Ouwr sudlt approsch regarding Infermation
Microfinance involves a large numbes of IT | Technology of the Microfinance included
systemns that are used o process and record | We canducted the - detall understating and
o lamge volume of trangactons N tha | testing regarding the existing system via
Microfinance’s activities | enguity, re-perfarmance and inspection to the
Ag @ resuft, Microfinance’s  financial | extent of our knowledge.

accounting and recording procedure places a | a) Varlfication of Loans and Advances
gignificant level of retance and rely onsuch T | Impalrmert based on aging on a test check
SyElEms | basis.

L ;-5010510/512 B info@csjsr.com & www.kjassociates. com.np
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|Appropriate IT general comtrols  and
application controls are required to ensure
that such IT sysieme are able to process the
data, as required, completely, eccurately and
consistently for reliable financial reporting.
Dus te the imparmnca af the impset of IT
gystems and related control environment on
ihe Microfinance's  financial  reporting
process, we have [dentified testing of such IT
systems and related control environmant as a
ey audit matter,
The existing system has not been audied as
| reguired,

b) Reviewsd the reporis generated by the
systems on & sample basiz

) Verified Interest Income and expense
booking for lgans and deposits using the
Microfinance’s System on test basis.

Loan Loss Proviglon

The maln business of Microfinance i to
provide loans 10 its customers. As per the
directives  jssued by the regulator
Microfinance should classify the loan and
advances on the basis of repayment status of

Our sudit procedures consisted of roview of
management assumption and classification of
loan and advances 1o check whethar the loan
loss provision & made according lo the
directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank

the lean (le. principal and interest) and
! nrnvidnlldﬂumlﬂn "’1 provinion,

Emphasla of Matters

Without gualifylng our opinion, we draw attention to 3.14.2.2 and 3.14.2 3 of Notes to the Financial
Statements, that for Gratuity, the liabiity to be recognized in the Statement of Financial Position ia
the present vaiue of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets. The Microfinance
necounts for the lability for the gratulty as pef the management calculation. Likewlss, the company
haa contributed @ 8.33% of the basic salary as per the provisions of existing bylaws of the
arganization. The migcrofinance has computed provision and liabilities for Geatulty without
considuring Actunrial valustion.

Likewiss, thie microfinance has computed provigion and linbilités for leave withoul considanng
Actusrial valuation

Infarmation Other than the Financial and Auditor's Report Thereon

Microfinance’s Manageman is responsible for the preparation of e other information. The other
information comprises the information included In the Management Report, Report of the Board of
Directors and Chalrman's statement bul doas not include the financial statements and our auditors
report therean.

Dur opinien on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not Express
any form of asaurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the other
Information and, in doing S0, cansider whether the other information is matesally inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowiedge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears 1o be materiaily misstated. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we ate requited 1o report that fact. We have
nothing to repart in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the praparation and fair presentation of these financal Staternents
In accordance with Mepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such imternal control as
rnanagement determines js necessary to enabie the preparation of financial statements that are free
from materlal misstatement, whether due o fraud and emor.
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in preparing the financial statements; management is respansible for assessing Microfinance abliity
{0 cartinue 58 8 going concem, disclosing, as appllcabls, matters redated 10 golng concern and using
the going concern basls of accounting unless managament either interds 1o liquidate Microfinance
o 1y censs opeiations, of hias no reallstic slternative but to do so,

Tha Board of Directors are responsibie for everseaing Microfinance financial reporting process

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Fimanclal Statemants

O objectives ae 1o abitain reasonable assurence whether the financial statements as a whole are
free frem matendl misstatement, whether due to freud or efror, and to issue an suditor's repon that
Includes our Gpinion. Reasonable assurance 4 a high level of assurance, but is nol & guarantee that
an audit conducted in scourdance with NSAs will aways detect 8 matersl misstatement when &
exigts. Misstatements can anse from fraud or enor and are considered matedlal f, individually of in
the aggregale, they couid reasonably be axpected to influsnce the economic decigions of usars taken
on the basis af thase financial statements.

As part of an audit In accordance with NSAG, we exercise professional udgment and mantam
professional scepticism throughout the sudit. We alsa:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatemen of the financial statemants. whethes
due 1o fraud or ermor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those raks, and
abitained audit evidence that is sufficient and sppropiiate to provide 2 basis for our opirion.
The risk af not detacting » mateslal misstatement resukting fram frad (s higher than for one
resufting fram emor, as freud may invoive collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
migrepresamations, of the averride of internal contral,

= Obtsin & understanding of Internal contrals refevant to the audit in order to deskgn audit
procedures that are approprate in the cincumstances, but not for the purpose of sxpressing
an opimon on the etfectiveness of the Microfinance’s intermal contral

« Evalyate the appropristeness of sccounting policies used and tie reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by managemant

» Conclude on the appropriateness of manegement's use of the going concam basis of
accaunting and, based on the pudlt evidence obtained, whether a materlal uncertainty exists
relsted to evenis or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Microfinance ability to
continue 25 & going concern. If we conalude that 8 matesdal uncenainty Bxists, we are recuired
o draw attention in our auditor's raport 1o the related disclosures in the financial statemenis
of, I =uch disclosures are inadequate, to modify our apinlon, Gur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our sudiior's faport. However, [Ltlie évents o
conditions may cause Microfinance 1o cesse to contlnue as a going concemn,

= Evaluate the overal presentation, structure and content of the linancial statements. ncluding
be disclosures, and financlal statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a mannet that achieves fair presantation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financisl informstion of tha smitiss
of business activities within Microfinance 1o express an opinion in the financial statements
Wa are responaibie for the direction, supervision and perfoimance of the audit. Wa remain
solely resparsible for aur sudit oplnion.

W communicate with thosa charged with govemance regarding, smeng other matters, ihe plannad
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significen deliczencies in
inmernal control that we [dentily during our aidil.

We also provide those charged with govemance with o statemant that we have complied with ralevanm
@thizal requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
ather mattars that may reasonsbly be thought to baar on our independence. and where Bpplicable
related safeguards.

From the matierns communicated with thase charged with govemance, we determine those mattars
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of We curment pariod and are
therafore the key audit matters, We descrbe these matters in our auditor's report unless |aw or
reguintion precludes public discionure about the matter of whan, in extramely rare cireumastances, we
determine that & matter should not be communicated in our report becs me the adverse
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conseguences of doing so would reasonably be expecied to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained satisfactory Infarmation and explanations asked for, which to the best of our
knowledge and befief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; the returns recelved from the
branch offices of Microfinance, though the statements are independently not audited, were adequate
far the purpese of audit; the financlal statements including staterment of financial position, statement
of profit or lozs, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of
cash flows including & summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notas have
been prepared in all material respect in accordance with the provisions of the Company Act-2063,
and they are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Microfinance; and the accounts and
recards of the Finance are properly maintained in accordance with the prevalling laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us In the course of our
audit, we observed that the loan has not been written off, the business of Microfinance was
conducted satisfactorily, and Microfinance transactions were found to be within the scope of ils
authority, We did not come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where the Board
of Directors or any employves or any office bearer of Microfinance has acted contrary to the provislons
of law or caused loss or damage to Microfinance or committed any misappropriation of the funds of
Microfinance.

\,
Sijan Bohara, CA
{Partrer)

K.J. & Assooiates
Chartered Accountants

Date: 6" Balsakh, 2081
Flace: Lalitpur, Nepal

LN 240471 BCADT16777BebP
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti-4, Kavrepalanchowk
Statement of Financial Position
As on 31 Ashadh, 2080

Amount in NPR

Farticulars Nate |  Asat 31 Ashadh, | Asat 22 Ashadh, s at 1 Shra
o M e | 20 (esttea | 267 [Restated
Eash ang Casl '.'|I'-1l-ll'|'=l|!1!|ﬂ 4.l 7 185, e 110,693,681 207 455,478
Stalutory Balances and Dus from Mepal Rastra Banh &2 11,70 BT 11,704 845 T 004 BES
Flal:ument wilh Bank B Hnanmal IHEtIIUhDI1E 43 - - =
!.Ivurluﬁlwu |‘|H.nrm| |nd!!1|:mvn!:. a.b -
Dther Trading Assets 4.8 - -
Lu-ans and Advance to MFIs & Cooperativas 4.8 . .l | ..
Loars atd Advarices to Cusloimers 47 1LTT0.ATYR0T 061,145,830 1.587,680,12¢6
Envestiment Securities 48 - 2 —
_Current Tay Assats 4.9 %ﬁﬂ'ﬂﬂﬁ* v T 4B22TE
Iymelment Proporty 10 A
Property and Equipment Nl :_Hl !_5_1-!_-&'!' 44,350, 1]-62 &4 IEE 545
Gaodwiil and Intangibie assais :-5.13;__ 1.36%, 063 1,392,720 1,359,545
E.Idurrnﬂ Tax Ssseis 413 28BS, 407 1,301,390
Other Assets £14 14,477,676 5,326,426 ST 2
Total Asszls 1.BTEGET 293 2246430084 | 1,755,425, 121
Liabilitigs
D to Bank and Finascal lstilutions 415 - - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank, 416 =
Derevalive Financul [nstrament 417
Depasits fram Cuslimers BrRES 706,475, 36z 311,574, 3 147 LE4 'i_'ge.
Eurrmlng 419 1,651 BER.SO0T 1, &'i‘IZI LT 523 | T AIDLLN 58T
Burrent Tax Liabilities 4.9 - Jﬁ-"-..lfu'?
Frn'.lus.luna &30 - -
ElefPrrEd Tax Liabilitiez 413 — - = i | 2368, I]'?E
Otfier L:-whlllwi!l ﬁm hi 5T BEE 42,393,054 05,298 135
Dbl Securilies lssued 422 3 =
Subordinated Liabilities 423 o =3 | ;
TnTal Laibllll!ﬂ 1704 BY250E 2085402 T4 I.b:E'T_'.I".I'E.'J'E'J'
Equity
Shara Capital 42| ZRO.O00.000 152,500,000 | 152,500,000
5I_1!1_‘1_r_F'rnrn|um - -
Ratained Eamings 110,571,092} _ 4,347,247 A SEEET
Reserves 42 32,385, TEB 20,170,357 | 10,089,642
Total Eauity ETILTBAATS | 179017620 | 147552360
Tulal Liabilities and Eguity 1,07 AGT Wl 2 4L A0, i, 1 ??5@_2_5 _1__23
Confingent Liatlities and Commitman 426 = E— | =
| et assets value per share T 11'?.39 IQQ‘;.E_'?_
fs per atlached Report of even date
Baturmn Thipa Bhojrai Bhattared Prabin ha Keshav Thapn
Chairman Director Dhirector Independem Direcios
Neemu Sherpa Tinesh Dalial Maraynn Prased Prasai CA Sijon Dolara
Direcror Public Director Director Parmer
E I & Associares
Clurierod Accomlants
Fejencdrn Sharma [amsal Tap Bahadnr Thapa
Place: Panauti, Kayvre
Date: 2081-01-05.
wfyr wgfae fadt g ., wWidy, S arfibe wfieT, 2060 /oge | 33



Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited
Panauti-4, Kavrepalanchowk

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the period ended 31st Ashadh 2080

Amount in NPR

i } For the perlnﬂu'ndﬂ | *Restated For the
Particulars. l-H_nh-l Year ended 32nd
| ' | I ] !ﬂi’llih. 2080 Ashadh, 2079
| Interest Income 427 303 857,504 285,543,255
Inlerest Expensze 428 231] 343,503 182 371,213
Net Interest Income 1 73,494,003 103,172,042
Fee and pummissiun Income 4.29 36,656, BEl | 24,372.252
Feeand Commission Expense | 4.30 = -
| Net Fee and Commission Income - 36,656,861 26,372,252
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 110,150,864 129,544,295
MNet Trading Incorne | a3 ' . -
Other Dperating Incorme &.32 - -
| Tlﬂ‘.ll.  Dperating Income _ 110,150,864 129,544,295
Imgairment charge/{reversat] lor lans and ether | 4,33 [1,276,578] 4,011,652
losses N | S
Net ﬂparatingln:nrne 1627442 125,532,642
[ nperating Expense
FersunnElE:'pEﬂses I 5387 '-"2.3?3&.-21'5"? | ﬁﬁ,'}2?.ﬂh1
| Other Ope rating I:IFI-EI'I.EE'E. I &38| 2791 A 11 3] .,.].?-2.253
UEpr@-matlun & Amortization | 43k 11,734,938 | 11,522,040
Operating Profit 1413,053) 16.109.279
Mon Dperatmg Incoma | 437 - -
| Nan Dperating Expense 4.38 T -
Profit belore Income Tax ) 1413,053) 16,109,279
Income Tax Expense 439 o -
CurentTax T - 8317.569
| Deferred Tax lIncomel/Expense (1,385,012 13,649,445
Profit for the year 971,959 11,561,174
Profit Attributable To:
Eguity Holders of The Financial Institulion ‘??1E?_ _1_1 Eﬁjl?‘*
| Profit For The Year 971,969 11,561,174
'Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share 0.40 758
I}Iluted Earnings Fer Share - - 1 .40 | 7.58 |
The accompanying notes are integral part of tn B rlnant:lal stateme nts:
b= per Our Report of Even Date
T —— T [ — Pradsin i SCusdie Thargne
LI hs T g g tan Timlopiusd vt THEmotaos
Teesmn Sherpa TTnesh Dialal *arayan Prossd Brisal CA Slan Dohars
Trecror FPublic Direcrod Pubidlc Direchod Parmes
I & Associases
A Ty AccasmiiE.
Tejendra Shanna Lsasal Top Baladur Thaga

Cluel Exeviative CXThoer el Fnancinl OTHoer

Place: Panauti, Kavre
[Yate- 2081-01-05

¥ | anftl wiee, ot /oc0
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
FPanauti-4, Kavrepalanchowhk
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the period ended 31st Ashadh 2080

Particulars

Forthe period | *Restated For the Year
Notes ended ended 32nd Ashadh,
2%th Ashadh, 2080 207%

Prafit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
al ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss | =

Gains [/ [Losses] from Investment in equity instrumenis |
measured at fair value

Gains / (Lossss| on Revaluation
Actuariol Gaine / [Lozses] on defined benefit plans
Incorne tax relating to above items

Met other Comprehensive Income that will not be
reclassified to Profitor Loss

| 971,959 11,561,174

bl Htems that are or may be reclassified to Profit or | =
Loss

Gainsd [Lasses] on cash flow hedga

Exchange gains/ [Losses| |arising from  translationg |
financial assets of foreign operation)

Income tax relating to above items
Rectassily o Profitor Loss

Nt other Comprehensive Incoma thal are ar may Iu- | =
reclassified to Profit or Loss

Other Comprehensive income for the year, net nf: =
| income tax

Total Comprehensive income for the year

wi 959 11,561,174

Total Comprehensive income for the period
Total Comprehensive income attributable to: [
Equity sharsholdar of the bank | P7LP59.14

H-;:ln Ennlml!lng |r|tE-rE 34

‘i"f‘l 75916 11,561,174.14

11,541,174.16

11,561,174.16

. Tatal t-nrnpr!h!nr.i“ income l'nr the peerind I .‘i';H ;?59;16

The accompanying notes are integral part of these |
financial statoments,

Az per our reporl of
even date

Butmmrmn Tlispa Aliojrag Blusearmi Praluis Flus Keshay Thispa

Chialrn DHirecror Direonor Independens Direcror

Fesmu Sherpo Ulnesi Diabuad Farayon Prassd Prasal CA - Sijan Do
Ihirector FPublic Derector Poblic Liirector FParmer

Shorrme Lamssl
lnd’ Fxmiansve Crifiza

Place: Panauli, Kavre
[Dale: #EE1-01-05

i op Babhadwr Thsps
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti-4, Kavrepalanchowk
Slatement of Distributable Profil/Loss
For the Period Ended 31 Ashadh 2080
[As per NRB Regulation|

Armount in NF'R

| Particulars | CurrentYear | PreviousYear
| Net Profit/[loss] as per Statement of Profit or Loss 471,959, 16 | 11,561,174.14
Appropriation R R
| & . General Resarve [19a,3%1.83] 497 84524
[ h - Fureign Exchange Fluctuation fund - -
c. Caplta{mdnmpllun reserve 3 | -
d . Corporate soclal respo nﬁlhlllty fund 19,719.591 34 BR4.26
-3 Empb:ryees lr:'lllllnl;lund - -
ﬂlﬁtnmer Protection Eund |9, 719.59] 34 894 26
g. Other
i'_._ Fair Value Ft-es_f.-r'l.ras - . =
il Investment Adjustment Resarve = =
| il Other Adjustments -
'_E_EET_E_F_EEH cost g:_h_q;-g_;a dlru:tl:.r ta :qui_t_g._r [5.515,061.2 25)
Frnﬁi!ltnssihrfuremgulahr‘rad|us'.'rntni 14, '?'5-5 R33N 10,793,500.38

ﬂeg u l:‘l.Lcll i .ﬁ.l:lj ustrments:
InierEEt EE::EWBbLE I- If'Fre'nuu s accrued interest rece Wedl- |
b. Shart Loan loss provision ifae countel-)fraversalls]
‘©.Shari provision for possibile losses on investment- ].."reu'erﬁal.h]

1998122650 | |

8,107,764 64|

d. Short. provision for passible losses on Non- Bankmg f—
1 I,."rswer's_alhj

&, Deferred Tad Assets recognized(-lreveralis|
K Guudwall re:ngnueﬂ I- M lmpairment of Guudwllll &
4. Bargain purchase gain recognized |-J/reversal:)

(1,385,011.83]

11,301,389,79|

. Actuarial Loss recognized (| revarsal(v]

Tf)ther

| Loan loss provision reversat of Hearheﬂuleﬁmrstrurtured Loan I?‘?E 'IB'? #?I I
Net Profit for the year end 31st Ashadh 2080 avalable for (14,918,359.31) 1,384,343,93
distribution |
‘Opening Retained Earning As on Tst Shrawan 4,347, 267.40 6,942 92346
Adjustments(+/-]

Distribution:

I Eln__ll_l,.l:s_ﬁ_l*_-_are :55uer,l = =
Cash Divide rrri F‘am: - -

Total Distributable profit or [Loss] as on year end (10,571,091.91)  6,347,267.40
Annualized __I.'l_i_strll:uhhlu FrnHHLnu Per Sh-ll'ﬂ' 15.93) &6 |

Datmram Thapn Déhiogra) Diatmrml Frabin Jha Ferahary

Chmirmmsn EMrechor LImwecrtop tnclmpranscenf LMpecior

e —— Ulrmeh Exalial e CA Sl Dohren

T s cTon Tranlakle Thin whoss Paurldic THiwcton:

Tm...__..... i:... i
Clidel Exccimlve OiThocr

Ters Milluimeise: Thisigm
Chier Fhiskan bal CrTier

3% | anfilep wfedem, 2oee soce
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti-&, Kavrepalanchowk
Statement of Cash Flows
For the period ended 31st Ashadh 2080

Figures in NPR

Particulars

| CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
| Interest recaived

tess and other income receved

For the period ended 25" *Restated For the Year ended

Ashadh, 2080 _ 32 Ashadh, 2079

S50 57
36,656,041

LrA5I0T0%
26,372,252

Dividend received

Receipls from other operaling activities

| Interest paid IEED3635D3l [fé&.ﬁl.iiuﬂl
i Cormmission and fees p._aid - -
Gash payment to employees _ {72:3%,2491 | 166,729.051)
| Othar axpensa paid [27,%31.311) 131,172,253
Operating cash flows befare changes in opar- [5,797.913) 18,773,520
ating assets and Liabilities
i [Irl:rnnl;_flh:ruu in operating assets
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank [zl [1,69%. 5400
.F:L.r-.ucemenr WIEII'I. El.ar.tlu and Fmancial Ins't.r.lu- - -
tions
_!'_'I-ther trading assels
Loans and nu;'ar-m s o bank and financial | - -
institutions
| Loans and advances to customers 293797 14 [530,468.875)
Other assets  18,651,270) 12,681,178

Increase/|Decrease] in operating Liabilities

Due to bank sand financial Institutions
Due to Mepal Rastra Bank

1103,749,1317)

| Deposit fram customers lﬁ;I.‘i‘l:I?,-‘*EE
Horrowings 238,979, 4°14] 260,427 343
Qther llabititics 118,027.231) 17,296,922
'Net cash flow from operating activities before (80,817.249) [76.642,801)
tax paid
Income taxes paid |2,964.510) [4,370,943]
Net cash flow from eperating activities ! 183,761,759 | [83.813,745)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Furchase of investment securities |1;E‘12.6MI“ . [13,138.232]

Recelpts from =sale of invesiment securitles
Furchase of property and equipmaent

Receipt from the sale of property and equip-
_ ment

I | e wfedes, vows /o
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Purchase of intangible assets
Receipt fram the sale of intangible assets
Furchase ol investment properiies

1508,500]

Receipt from the sale of investment properties

Interest receved

Dividend received
Dihers

Met cash used in imit‘mg activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

11,512,666)

(13,646,732)

Receipt from |ssue of debl zecunties

Repayment of debl securilies

Ruciepts from ssue of subsrdinated labilities
Hapajrmen_t ars_ubardinﬂt_ed lrability
Receipts from issue of shares

¥7.500,000

Dividends paid

Intarest paid

Other receipl/payment

by otbbe i

peridd

Met cash from Hnnn:il_'in activities
Met increase [decreasel in cash and cash

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the

|5.'.'-'El-h.832l“ .

71,795,118
6,600,695

110,695,081

195.9200
(95,920)
196,756,3%7]

207,451,478

and cash equivalents held

period

Effect of exchangs rate fluctuations on cash

Cash and cash equival,ents at the end of the

117,195,775

110,695,081

The accompanying nales are integral part of these financial sialements.

A= per gur report ot even date

Place: Panguti, Kavra
Date- 2081-01-06
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2.

Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limite
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Significant Accounting Policies and Motes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 31st Ashadh 2080
Reporting Entity

Avivan Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited |'the Microfinance'l is domicilad and incorporated in
Mepal as a O Class licensed financial (nstitution as per Bank and Finaneial Institution Act, 2043,
The micrefinance is a limited liability company registered in Office of the Company Registrar on
2075.12.25. The micrefinance obtained license to carry out the financial transactions on 2074.06,01
fram MNepal Rastra Bank,

Being O Class licensed inslitution, major aclivilies of lhe microfinance include deprived sector
lending under the group guarantee without collateral in order to enhance econsmic and social
factors of the members. Also, the microfinance provides additional micreenterprise loan to its
members within the limit as prescribed by Mepal Rastra Bank from time to time. The major
sources of fund are member savings, public deposits along with toan from other BFls and Equity
holders' fund

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Microfinance, have been prepared in accordance with Nepsl
Financial Reporting Standard [NFRS) issued by Accounting Standard Board [ASB] and pronounced
by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal [ICAN]

The financial statements are based on the formats mandated by the Directive Mo, 4 of The Unified
Directives, 2078 as made applicable by the Mepal Rastra Bank|NREL

These financial statements for the period ended 31st Ashadh, 2080 are the first financial statements
of the microfinance prepared in accordance with NFRS.

2.1. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statement has been preépared in sccordance with Mepal Financial Repoerting
Standards [NFRS| as published by the Accounting Standards Boeard [ASBl-Nepal and pronounced
by the ICAM and in the format issued by MRB in directives No.4 of NRB Directive 2078,

2.2. Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements

The microfinance follows Mepalese financial year based on MNepall calendar starting from 1st
Shrawanand ending on last day of Ashadh.

These financial statements consist three Statement of Financial Position as of 31st Ashadh 2080,
J2nd Ashadh 2077 and 13t Shrawan 2078 as required by NFRS-1, First-Time Adoplion of NFRS.
The microfinance has also presented two Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, twa statements of Changes in Equity and two Statements of Cash Flows
for the perod ended a= of 31st Ashadh 2080 and 3Z2nd Ashadh 2077 along with the necessary and
related notes,

The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for the preparation and resentation of
linancial slatemeants as per the provision af The Campanies Act, 2063,

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors's 95th
meeting andracommended for the approval by shareholders in the 4th Annual General Meeting
af the company,

2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency

The linancial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees [NPR) which is the currency of the
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primary ecanomicenvirgnment in which the Microfinance operates. The financial information
presented has bean rounded off to nearest rupees excepl where otherwise stated.

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumplions and Judgments

The preparation of linancial statemants requires management lo make judgmenls, astimates and
assumptions in the applicatron of accounting policies that atfect the reported amounts of assets,
liabltities, income and expenses, Actual resulls may differ from these estimates, Contindous
evaluationis done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other
factors, Including expectations of tuture avents that are balieved to be reasonable. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

2.5. Changes In Accounting Policies

The accounting palicies are applied consistently to all the periods excepl where devialions have
been explicitly mandated by the applicable accounting standards presented in the tinancial
staterments, including the preparation of the opening NFRS compliant Statement of Financial
FPasition as at 1st Shrawan, 2078 being the date of transition to NFRS.

2.6, Mew Standards Issued but not yet effective

IFRS-9, Financial Instrument which replaces the existing standard relating to Financial Instrument
which provide for the expected credit loss model for the impairment of the finaneial assets. This
statement is neither issued nor made applicable by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Mepal [ICAN). Thus,; the impairment of financial assets are measured, presented and disclosad
using MAS-3% Financial Instrument-Recognition and Measurements and NFRS-7 Financial
Instrument- Disclosure.

2.7, Discounting

The non-current assets and liabilities are discounted whenever the discounting is material and if
required by the NFRS.

Significant Accounting Policies
3.1. Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements of Microfinance have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
for the staternent of cash flows which |s prepared on cash basis,

3.2. Cash & Cash Equivalent

The cacsh and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow staterment include cash in hand,
balances with banks and financial institutions, money at call and short notice and highly liguid
financial assets with original maturity of three menths or less from the acquisition date that are
subject to and insignificant risk of changes in heir fair values and are used by the microfinance in
the management of its short-term commutments.

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash in hands, deposits with BFls and ‘other short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less,

3.3. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
3.3.1. Recognition

The Microfinance recognizes financial assets and financial lizbilities when it becomes 3
parly to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are
measured al fair value on initial recognition, Transaction costs in relation to financal assets
and financial liabilities, other than those carried at fair value through profit or loss [FWTPLI,
are added to the fair value on Initial recognition. Transaction costs in relation ta financial
assels and financial liabilities which are carried at fair value through profit or loss [FWVTPL),
ara charged to the staternent of profit and (oss.
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3.3.2. Classification and Measurement

The financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amartized cost ar fair value
on the basis ofbusiness model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the firnancial assets.

1.3.3.1. Financeal assels
Financial assets are classified under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:
a. Measured at amortized cost:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financizl
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
Interest, are subseguently measuredat amortized cost using the effective interest rate ['EIR’]
method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising from an impairment,
if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Measured at fair value through QCl:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both,
selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income [OCIL

Equity Instrument which are not held for trading and initially recognized as held fer trading
far which the Microflinance makes an irrevocable election to carry the changes in fair value
of the instrument through OC| are measured at Fair Value through other Comprehensive
Incarma.

c:Measured at fair value through profit or logs:

The Microfinance classifies the financlals assets as falr value through profit or loss if they are
held for trading or designated at fair value through profit ar loss.

Any other linancial asset not classilied as sither amartized cost or FVOCH is classified as FYTPL,
3.3.3.2. Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified under two categories as reguired by NFRS 7, namely:

a. Financial liahilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loes inctude financial liabitities held for
tradingand financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
prafit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost is directly attributable to the acouisition
are recagnized inStatement of Profit ar Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value are
recognized at profit or loss,

b, Financial Liaghilities measured at amaortized cost:

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair vatue though profit or less are classified as
subseguently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method

3.3.3. De-recognition

The Microfinance derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
Hows from the

financial asset expire or il transfers the contractual rights Lo receive the cash flows [rom the
assetl.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged,cancalled or expires,
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3.3.4. Determination of Fair Value

The tair value of a financial instrument |s the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a lishility in an orderly transection between market participants al the
measurement date. The Microfinance follows three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy are
described below:

Level 1: Quoted |unadjusted] prices for identical assels or labilities in active markets;

Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly abservable
or valuations of auoted for similar instrument in active markets or quoted prices for identical
or similar instrument in inactive markets; and

Level 3: Significant Inputs ta the fair value measurement are unobservable.

Inviestment in Unguoted Equity Instrument are carried at cost as the market price of such
shares couldnol be ascertained with certainty at Lhe reparting date,

3.35. Impairment

The Microfinance reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each reporting
date to assess whether an impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of Profit
or Lass. The Management’s judgment is extensively used in the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss, These estimates
are based on assumplions aboul a number of factors and hence aclual resulls may diffar,
resulting in future changes to the provisions made.

Carve out adopted for computation of impairment charge

The Microfinance has opted to apply carve out on para 5.5 of NFRS % on impairment of financial
assets measured al amortized cost. Accordingly, individual and collective impairment
loss amaunt calculated a5 per MFRS is comparsd with the impairment provision required
under NRE directive no. 2. Higher of the amount derived from these measures is taken as
impairment loss for loans and receivables,

3.4, Trading Assets

Financial assels are classified as trading assats [held for tradingl i they have beep
acquired principallyfor the purpose of selling in the near term, ar form part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are recognized on trade date, when the
Micratinance enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are normally
deracognized when sald. They are initislly measured at fair value, with transaction cosls
taken to profit or loss. Subsequent changes in their fair values are recognized in profitor
loss in ‘Met trading income’. However, the Microfinance does not have such assets to be
recagnizedas trading assets as on Ashadh end 20779,

3.5. Derlvalive Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Derivative instrumenis include transactions like interest rate swap, currency swan, forward
foreign exchange contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes.
Derivative financial instruments are imitially measured at fair value on the contract date and
are subsequently re-measured to fair value at each reporting date. However, the Microfinance
does not have such instruments as on Ashadh end 2079,

1.4, Property, Plant and Equipmant

Recegnition and rmeasurament. Property, plant and eguipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures directly
attributableto the acquisition ol the assel.

Depreciation: The Microfinance depreciates property, plant and egquipment following
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Written Down Yalle method applying the Depreciation rates prescribed by Income Tax Act,
2058, The rates used Tor depreciation of assets for the current and comparative period of
significant stems of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Type ofAsset Useful Life Depreciation Rate

Computer & Accessaries 10-11 Years 25%

Vehicles 13-14 Years 201%

Furniture & Fixtures 10-11 Years 25%

Equipment & Others - Equipment 10-11 Years 25%

Other Assets 10-11 Years 25%

Intangible Assets Amortized Over 5years
on Straight Line Basis

The Microfinance adopts cost model lor entire class of Property, Plant and Equipment. It has
not measured any Property Plant and Eguiprment at revaluation medel and at fair value, The
jtems of Property, Flant and Equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of newly acquired asseis is charged based upon the date of inveice and assets
having acguisition cost less than NPR. 2,000 have been written down as an expense for the
peried in the Staterment of Profit and Loss,

3.7, Gaodwill/Intangible Assels

Anyexcess of the cost of acquisition over Lhe fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired
in Business Combination is recognized as goodwill: Goodwill is measured at cost less any
gccumulated impairment losses, Geodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or mors
frequently, if events or changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

Intangible assets are recognized separately fraom goodwill when they are separable or arise
from contractualor olther legal rights, and their fair value can be measurad reliably. These
intangible assets are recognized at historical cost less impalrment / amoertization over their
estimated useful life,

3.8. Investment Property

Investment properties include land or land and buildings other than those classified as
property and eguipment and non-current assets held for sale. It includes assets which
are held for capital appreciationor for rental to others ar held for undetermined future use,
It also includes land, land and building acquired by the Micro finances non-banking assets
but not sold as on the reporting date. However, the Microfinance does not have Investment
Praoperty as on Ashadh end.

3.9, Income Tax
Tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax
3.9.1. Current Tax

Current tax is the incorme tax expense recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to
the extentit relates to items recogrnized directly in eguity or QC1inwhich case it s recognized
in eguity or in other comprehensive incomie. Current tax is the amounts expected or paid to
Intand Revenue Departrment in respect of the current year, using the lax rates and tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of prior years.
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3.9.2. Deferred Tax

Deterred tax is recognized an temparary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and lisbilities in the balance sheet snd the amounts attributled to such assets and liahitities
for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax asseals are recognized to the extent that it s probable that futurs
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized,

Deferred fax is calculated usmg the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which
the assets will ba realizedar the Labilities settled, based an tax rates and laws enacted,
or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
otfset when they arise in the same tax reporting group and retate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation autharity, and when the group has a legal right to offset,

3.9.3, Depaosit, Debt Securities lssued and Subordinaled Liahilities
3.9.4 Deposits

Depesits by members and public depositors are initially recognized at fair value, plus for
those financial liabilities not at fair value through profit and loss, The transaction price is
considered as the fair valuelor measuring the deposils

3.9.5 Debl Securilies |ssued

Debt Securities are initatly measured st the fair value less incrementsl direct cost and
subseguently at their amortized cost using effective interest method except where the bank
designates liabilities al fair valua through profit or loss, However, the Microfinance does not
kave such Debt Securities as on Ashadh end 2079.

3.9.6 Subordinate Liabilities

2100

2.1

These are the Liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up. to claims of depositors,
debt securities |ssued and other creditors. It shall include redeemable.preference shares,
subordinated notes issued, borrowings etc. During the reporting period the Microfinance do
not have any such liabilities.

Provisions, other Liabilities Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized, if as a resull of a past event, the Microfinance has a present legal
or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be requiredto settle the ohligation, The amaunt recognized is the
best estimate of the consideratien required to settle the present obtigation at the reporting
date, taking into-account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the cbhligationat that date,
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate and are reversed if there s no probability of sutflow of resources.

The contingent liabilities are the liabllities for which it |5 uneertain g2 to whether |t will
became an ohligationas it depends on the occurrence of an uncertain fulure event, These
amaunts are off-balance sheet items and are disclosed when there is a possible obligation
that may but prebably will not reguiregan outflow of resources,

A provision for onerous conlracts is recoonized when the expected benefits to be derived
by the Microfinance from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its
obligations under the contract, The Microfinance does not have such contingent liabilities
and onerous contracts as on Ashadh end 2079,

Ravenue Recognilion

Revenue s recognized Lo the extent thal it is probable that the economic benelits will Flow
te Microfinance and the consideration can be reliably measured. The following specific
recognition eriteria shall also be met for revenue recognition:
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2.10.1. Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest bearing financial assets
classified as available- for-sale and financial instruments designated at Tair value through
profit or loss, interast income or expense is rocorded using the Effective Interest Rate [EIR].
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash paymesnts or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter peried. where appropriate, to the
nat carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability, The calculation of effective
interest rate includes all chamges and fee paid or receivad thal are integral part of the
effoctive interest anly if considered necessary. Such a charges are not amortized over the life
of the loan and advances as the income so recogmnized closely approximates the incame that
would hanve derived under effective interest method and are recognized directly in statement
of prafit and |oss.

The interest income recognized in the statement of profit and loss ineludes the tollowing:

. Interest income on linancial assets measured 8t amortized cost calculated onan effective
interest rate method, except lar impaired leans and advances. Theses financial asseats include
investment in government securities, investment in NRE Bond and deposit instruments,
reverse repos, inter-bank lending, ete.

= As per carve oul on NFRS 9 Para 5.4, the Microfinance has not included the fess paid or
recajved in loans and advances that are immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably the
effective interest rate and have recognized them directly as revenue in the Statement of Profit
or Loss.

. As per carve out on NFRS 9, Para 5.4, the Microfinance has applied the effective interest rata
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset is written off
sither partially or fully.

. |mterest on imvestment securities measured at fair value is calculated on effective Interestrate.

. Incame on discounted instruments like bills purchased, documents negolistion isrecognized
over the periad of discounting on accrual basis using effective interest rate.

. Interest income an all trading assets 15 considared to be inoidental to the Groun's trading
operalions and are presenled together with all other changes in fair value of (rading assels
and liabilities in net trading income.

. Interesl income accrued but not received from Performing Loan and Advance till datehas
heen recognized in the current year interest incame,

2.10.2. Fee and Commission Incame.

Fees and commissions are generally recognized on an acerual basis when the service has
been provided.

2.10.2. Dividend Income,

Dividend income received from equity shares is recognized in the books when the right to
recajve the dividend is established.

2.10.4. Met Trading Income,

Met Trading Income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value, related capital
gainfloss and dividend from linancial assets "Held lor Trading'. Trading expenses are
deducted fram the trading income and the amount net of trading expenses are disclosed in
statement of profit and loss.

2,105, Net Income from Other Financial Instrument at Fair Value through Profit and Loss:

MNet incarme from other financial instrument measured at fair value through Profit or Loss
inctudes all gains/(losses) raised from the revaluation of financial instrument at fair value.
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2.10.&, Grant Income

Grant income are recognized in Income statemnent on @ systematic basis over the period in
which the microfinance has recognized the expense for the related cast for which the grants are
intended to compensate. In the casa of grants related to assets, Deferred Grant lncome has
besnrecegnized, The amount egua! to thedepreciation an the Grant Assets s charged to grant
income for the period.

212 Interest Expenses

Interest expense an sll financial liabilities Including deposits is recognized in statement of
profit or loss using effective interest rate method, The Microfinance uses ASB carve- outs as
mentioned above and treal coupon raleas effective interast rale.

Z.13. Employes Benefils
2.12.1. Short term employes benafits

The Micrafinance’s short term employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, atlowances,
soclals security expenses, bonuses as provided in the law and other employee related
expenses. Short term employee bhenefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
charged to statement of profit and loss as and when the related service is provided.

2.12.2. Post-Employment employee benefits
2.12.1.1. Dehlined Contribution Plans

Post-Employment benefits plan under which the microfinance pays a fixed contribution
to a separale entity and has noe lzgal or constructive obligation to pay luture amounis are
categorized under defined contribution plans. The contributions to defined contribotion
plans are recognized in profit or loss asand when the services are rendered by employeas,

Frovident Fund

Employee provident fund is the defined contribution plan apt by the microfinance. Camplying
with The Labor Act, 2074, the microlinance conlributes 10% of the Basic salary and Grade
Amount of all the employees to the Approved Retirement Fund, established by the
micrafinance. The Microfinance hasne further obligations under thess plans beyond its
periodic contributions,

Any unpaid contribution is recorded as a Uability under 'Other Liabilities' in Naote 4.21.
2.12.1.2. Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan s a post-smploymient benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Microfinance’s net obligation In respect of defined benefit plans Is calculated
separately lor each plan by estimaling the amount of Tulure benefit that employees have
earnad in return for their service in current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to
determing ils presant value, Any unrecognized past service costs-and the Tair value of any
plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date op corporate
bonds, that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Microfinance's obligation
and thal are denominated in the currency in which the banelil is expected lo be paid. The
defined benafit sbligation is recognized on the basis of the report of gualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. The Microfinance recognizes all actuarial gains and lossas
arising from defined benefit plans immediately in 0Cl and all expenses related to
defined benefits plans in employee benefit are expensed in profit and loss accaunt. When the
caleulation resulls ina potential assel for the group, the recognized assels are limited 1o the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan
or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the prezent value of econamic
benefits consideration is-.given to any applicable minimum funding requirements:
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Mezssurements of the net defined benetfit Lability comprise the company's estimation for
the provisionbased on the emploves’s bylaw.

21213, Other Long-Term Benefits:Leave

Other long-term henelits include those payments which are not due within 12 months afler
the end of thereporting percd.

The microfinance provides accumulated |eave benefits under its Employees Byelaw. The
Home leave is accumulated up to 90 days and there Is no limit for the accumulation of sick
leave. Accumulated leave bensfits are treated as long lerm benefil lability, Accumulated leave
obligations are calculated based on the company's estimated provision based on number of days
remaming to avail asan year end,

2.4, Leases

The microlinance has applied NFRS 14 using the eumulative calch-up approach and therelore
comparativeinfarmation has not been restated and is presented under NAS 17. The details of
accounting policies under both NAS 17 and NFRS 16 are presented separately below,

Paolicies applicable from 1 Shrawan 2078

The Microfinance assesses whether a contract s or contains a lease, al inception of the
contract, The Microfinance Recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding leass
liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessea, except for short-term
leases [defined as leases with & lease term of 12months or less| and leases of low value assets
|such as tablets and personal computers, small items of officefurniture and telephones). For
lhese leases, the Microfinance Recognizes the lease payments as an operatingexpense an
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are
consumed. The leaseliability is initially measured al the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. |f
this rate cannol be readily determined, the Microlinance uses its incremiental borrowing rate,

Lease payments included in the measerameant of the lease lability comprise:

=  Fixed |lease payments [including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
Incentives recejvable.

+ \Variable lease payments that depend on an index ar rate, initially measured
using the indsx or rate atthe commencemesnt date;

*= Theamount expected to be payable by the lesseeunder residual value guarantees,

=  The exercize price of purchase options, if the lesses is reasonably cerfain to
axercise the options; and

«  Payments of penalties for Lerminaling the lease if the lease term reflects the
exarcise of an option toterminate the lease

The lease Liability is subsegquently measured by increasing the carcying amount to reflect
interest on the lease lability lusing the effective interest method-assumed to be 10% and
by reducing the carmyng amodnt to retlect the lease payments made. The Microfinance
remeasures the lease liability [and makes a corresponding adjusiment to the related right-
of-use asset| whenaver:

= The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in
circumstances resulting in a change |n the assessment of edercise of a purchase
option, in which case the lease tliability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate.

¢  The lzase payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a changa'in
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215,

a;

bl

c)

d]

expected payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease
Liability s remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using an
unchanged discount rate [unless the lease payments change is due to a change
in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used|.

« A lease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a
separate lease, in which case the lzase ligbility is remeasured based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate al the effective date of the modification,

The Micrafinance did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented,

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease
liability, lease paymentsmade at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentivas
recejved and any initial direct costs. Theyare subsequently measured at cost less accurmulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Share Capital and Reserves
2.14.1. Share Capital

Financial instruments issued are classified as eguity when there is ne contractual obligation
to transfer cash, other financial assets or issue available number of owh eguity instraments,
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown In equity as
deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.

Mvidends an ordinary shares classified as ecguity are recognized in eguity in the period in
which they are declared

2.14.2. Resarves
The reserve includes regulatory and free reserves.
Statutary General Reserves

20% of the net profit as stated in Bank and financial Institution Act, 2073 |BAFIA] and 50% of
additional amount of Cash Dividend and Bonus Shares if declared and distributed in excess
of 20% as provisioned in Circular GHA/1/078/79 of NRB Dated 2078/04/11 is set aside to the
genoral reserve,

Exchange Equalization Reserva

This is statutory reserve created in compliance with BAFIA. 25% of the revaluation on the
fareign currency computsd as per regulatory books is sel aside 1o Exchange Equalization
Reserve.

Aszets Revaluation Reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and is-the requirament in the application of accounting policy
for non- finanoal assets such as property, eguipment, investment property and intangible
assels thal are measured Tollowing revaluation model. Revaluation reserve oflen serve
as a cushion against unexpected loss but may not be fully available to absorb unexpected
losses due to the subsequent deterioration in the market values and tax consequences of
revaluation. The microfinance hasn’t followed revaluation model.

Capltal reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and represents the amount of all the capital nature reserves
such as the amount sarsing from share forfeiture, capital grants and capital reserve arising
oul ol busingss combinations, Funds in this reserve are nol available for distribution of cash
dividend but can be capitalized by issuing bonus shares upan obtaining prior approval from
the central bank

wfyr wgfae fadt g ., wWidy, S aiftier wfides, 3089 /000 | €9



e] Corporate Social Responsibility [C5R) Fund

1% of net profit s set azide |n the fund as par the NRB Oirectives for the purposa of corporate
social responsibility,

fl  Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserye

The amaount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the microfinance both positive
or negative to this reserve as per the directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation
of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as (ree reserve for distribution of dividend are
recarded In this reserve. The reserve includes actuarial gain/[loss) net of tax on defined
benetit plan.

g. Client protaction fund

Client protaction fund is creatad at 1% of net profit. In addition to this, 25% of dividend in
eycessol 20% 15 also allocaled Lo this fund as per MRB Direclives.

hl Other reserves

Any other reserve created with specific or nen-specific purpess are presented under this by
disclosing account heads.

3.17. Earrings per Share [EPS| including diluted EPS

Microfinance presents basic and diluted Earnings per share [ERS] data for its ordinary
shares. Basic EPS is caleulated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordimary equity
holders of Bank by the weighted averaae number of ardinary shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit and loss attributable to the
ordinary equity holders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares oulstanding,
[or the effects of all dilutive potential erdinary shares.

3.14. Segment Reporting

The Microfinance's operating segments are organized and managed separately through the
respective department/business managers according to the nature of products and services
provided with each segment representing a steategic business unil. These business unils are
reviewed by Chief Executive Officer of the Microfinance.

The Microfinance has identified seven segments namely: Province 1, Madhesh Province,
Bagmati Province, Gandaki Province, Lumbini Province, Karnali Province and Far West
Frovince as the six operating segment and the segment report is set out in Notes 5.4

Segment reports include items directly attributable te a segment as well as those that can
be atlocated on a reasonable basis, The income, expenses, assets & liabilities that cannot
be allocated Lo aforesaid segment or those related to head office are unallocaled. The
unallocated items gererally comprise of head office assets, head office expenses, and tax
ascoets and liabilities, The geographical segment has been identified an the basis of the
location of the branches in 7 difierent provinces of the country.
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent Fig. In NRP

| _ Asat3lAshadh, ~ Asat32Ashadh,  AsatlShrawan
(R P?nkuhm | w0 | 2077 (Restated] | 2078 (Restated)
Cash In Hand 1,416,348 2.567,091 1,263,644

| Balances With B/Fis 116,779,427 108,127,590 204,188,031

Money At Call And Short Notice
Other
Total 117,195,775 110,695,081 207,451,478

4.2 Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

At at 31 Ashadh, | As at 32 Ashadh, 2079 As at 1 Shrawan

el _ 2080 | (Restated]  2078(Restated]
Statofory Balances With NRE 11,706,847 | 11,704,845 10,004,885
Statutory Balances With BFls I
Securibies Purchased Under Resale Agreement
Other Deposit And Recewable Fram NEE
Talal 11,704,847 | 11,704,845 10,004,885
4.3 Placements with Financial Institutions
s

; 453t 3] Ashadh, | As at 32 Ashadh, | Asat 1 Shrawan
Fasiopas _ 2080 2079 (Restated) | 2078 (Restated)
Placements wilh Domestic Fis = > =
Less: Allowances for Impainment - - =
Total - = =
4.4 Derivative financial Instrument

: Asat 31 Ashadh, | Asat 32 Ashadh, As at 1 Shrawan
st 2080 2079 [Restated] 2078 [Restated|

Held For Trading
. Interest Rate Swap
. Eurrencv Swap
. Forward Exchange
. Contract
. Others
I Held For Risk Management

Interest-Rate Swap

Currency Swap - . B
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

!-?urwa r-d Exchange
Contract

Other

Total

4.5 Dther Trading Assets

Fig. In NRP

-

Farticulars

As at 31 Ashadh,
iy

As at 32 Ashadh,
2079 [Restated)

preep—
2078 [Restated]

Treasury Bille

Government Bonds

NRE Bonds

Domestic Corporate Bonds

Equities

Other

Tatal

Pledaed

Non-Pledged

i.6 Loan-and Advances to MFls & Cooperatives

Particulsis

As at 31 Ashadh,
2080 ;

As at 32 Ashadh,
2079 [Restated]

As at 1 Shrawan
2078 [Restated)

Loans To Microfinance Institutions
Laans To Fis

Loans To Cooperative

Less: Allowance For Impairment

Othar
Less: Allowances For Impairment
Total

£.6.1; Allowances for Impairment

Particulars
Balance At Shrawan |
Impairment Loss For The Year:
Charge For The Year

As at 31 Ashadh,
2080

As at 32 Ashadh,
2079 (Restated)

Hecoveres/Heversal

Amount Written O

Balance AL Achadh End

43 | it wfides, veessoce
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

4.7 Loans and Advances to Customers Fig. In NRP
_ | Asat31Ashadh, | Asat 32 Achadh, | ks at 1 Shrawan
Particulars 2080 2079 |Restated| | 2078 [Restated)
! { .
Loan and advances measured al amortized cost 1,823.821,475 2,098,304, 756 1,554, 848 40%
Less) Impairmen! allowances
| Collectivo impairment | 6,767,688 | B o]
| Individual impairment N 26,577,884 _3_1_.23-!:-.’!3& ﬂ? 2?5 EBJ
Het amount ) 1,790,471,701 2,057,149,820 1, EIT 623, 116
l,aan and au;hran::et; mieasured at F‘anF'L
_ | Tatat 1,790,471,201 2,047,149, 820 1,627,623,125 |
4.7.1: Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Product
: As at 31 Ashadh, As al 32 Ashadh As al 1 Shrawan
Particulars 2080 | 2079 (Restated] | 2078 [Restated)

!’rﬂduﬂ

| Term Loans

5|1|:|rl Term, TEI'FII Ln:ul
Lnng Term, Turml O

HITE Purchase Loans

PE r5ortal Fiesll:FE ntral Laa ns

Eta ff Leans

2,075,681,897.86 1.545,013.017. .h '

Ulher 1,785.272,395.15 |
Sub Total 1,785,273,395.15 | 2 HTE &B1 3-92 84 'I 565.1113 E'.I"I.':' -H'
Interest Receivable 46,548, DB[}. 17 dé.?ﬂ&.ﬂﬁz.ﬁ? ¥ BJE J-'H 'S'B
Grand total 1,823, HET &?E 32_:. Zﬂ]?&.ﬂﬂﬁ.ﬁﬁ.ﬂ 1 1 EMHM
4.7.2: Analysis of Loan and Advanr_es B1_,r Collateral
Particula As at 31 Ashadh, As 2t 32 Ashadh, As at 1Shrawan
D 2080 2079 (Restated) 2078 [Restated]
: Secured
Immovable Assals

Governmmient Buarantes
|

| Collateral OF Bovernment 5e:ur|+|E5

Collateral Of Fixed Depaosit Recept
Braup Guarantes

FEFEIJI'I:HL {:uamntee

Other Collateral
| Sub Tetal

| Unsecured

Grand Total

firaty agfae faefta e i, yidl- v, smversals
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

Fig. In NRP
4.7.3; Allowances for Impairment
Asat31Ashadh, |  Asat3zAshadh, |  AsatiShrawan
FactisuiSes 2080 2079 (Restated) 2078 (Restated)
Sp.ur.Hi: Allowances For Impairment
Halirlce M ShrIWin 1 31_.23__&.'135_ . 2?.225._25? 2?.2_25_.2_!3
| Impairment Loss For The Year: I
Charqe For The Yesr 44570891 | 40171452 | |
Fﬂacwer:esfﬁ‘e'ﬂel ssl During The Year
W1 ite-0tfs
mhnr Manarmnant
Balinl;n At .ﬁshidh End 26,579,886 I 31,236,936 27,225,283 I
[:ulleu:!we Allowance for .ImpaF'rment I | I
Hal.;mu! At Shrawan 1 - - | -
E;E;n-'r.l_e;'lrl_-na_rrlr:oFThE Year:
I {Enarge.flﬂlwrsall For 'Fha .‘r;uar b?ﬁ‘i‘_ﬁsé
I Other Movernent |Acquisition of Sajilo Laghu- I
bittal
I Balance At Ashadh End E 76T, EEE = -
I Total Allowances For Impairment 33 349, 5'?5 31,236,938 27,225,283 I
4.8 Investment Securities
e el el
Investment Securities Measured At Amoartized
Cost
: ;n-.-:.nsLmem |nEany_ﬁmﬁTFﬁum
Total o 2 g -
4.8.1; Investment Securities Measured at Amortized Cost
Parkiculars. Asatit - Asa3z ‘As at 1 Shrawan
e ‘Ashadh, 2080 Ashadh, 2079 [Restated) | 2078 [Restated|

Debt Securiiies

| Government B ohdz

I Gevernment Treasury Bills

I ﬂep-nt Rastra Bank Sonds

I hlepai Rastra Bank Deposiis [nstruments
ﬂthrer

L'E'ES. Specitic Allowances For Impairment

| Total

4 ¥ | arfthr whiEes, 2eus /o
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauli 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080
Fig. In NRP

4.82: Investment in Eguity Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
Amount in NPR

Asatdl Asat 32 | Asat1Shrawan

! SR Cl Ashadh, 2080 Ashadh, 2079 (Restated) 2078 [Restated)

. Equity Inatruments
Quoted Eauity Securities

j Ull:_|u_ﬂ!ﬂc_.i Equll:r' 5n=1:_||rrties ! |
Total _ =] =] =|[

4.8.3; Information Relating to Investment in Equities

| Current Year . | Previous Year
Particulars - T ] T
| [ Cost | ForWilig | Eoet |FeirVelue _
Investment in Quoted Egquity |
o i
.mhares of Rs sach
P s A

oshares of Rs each
' Investment in Unguoted Equity
. Mepak Finsoft 'L’Jam!:lan'y LEITIiI:'E'Ii.
| 10,000 Shares of NPR 100 esch
| Tm..L - ik ; ! — — — :

4.% Current Tax Assets

: S _ e
As at 31 Ashadh, | As at 32 Ashadh, As at 1 Shrawan
lisisaiic R S
Current Tax Assets
Current Year Income Tax Assets 2,600,181 T.BE3220 1,482 276

Tax Assets Of Prior Penods
Current Tax Liabilities

Current Year Income Tax Liabiities [ il [ B.217.549 I -
Tax Liabilities Of Prior Periods
Tatal 2,600,181 [364,349) 1,482,274

4.10 Investment Properties

 Asat31Ashadh, | Asat32 Ashadh, | AsatShrawan
Ll 2060 2079 [Restated] 2078 [Restated

Investment Properties Measurad At Fair Valus
Balance Az On Shrawan 1
Addition/Disposal During The Year
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080
Fig. In NRP

Asat3tAshadh, | Asat3zAshadh, | Asat1Shrawan
2080 2079 (Restated] | 2078 (Restated]

Particulars

et Changes In Fair Walue During The Year
. Adjustment/Transfer
I ﬂ;l #muunl-
I iﬁvaﬁlmant Prnperll.s.m Heasurad At Cost [
I Balance As On Shrawan 1 [ - I = |
I .G.-d-l:.l-i.tl-anfﬂis-.pn.sai i:lu-rlng The Year [ - | .|
I Adjustment/Transfer i - | 5
I Accumulated Deprecation [ - | =
I .;S;l.:chn.u.l;l.éd.lmpéurrr;ent Loss [ - - | - |
| Net Amount I - = =
Total ' = - =

4§ | T ufades, 2eeseco siftrry crafa fadta e fa., uditd-», sndvens=is
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauli 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

Fig. In NRP

417 Goodwill and Inlangible Assets
particulars Gondwill Sues Other Total ‘

Purchased Developed
Cost ' '

| As On Shrawan 1, 2078 ' [ 1,731,846.83 - - 1.731,864.83
I Addition During The Year l 5 = l . I
: Acauisition -| 508,500.00 | - | - 508,500.00

Capitalization : a
I Dizpesal During The Year - | - - H
I Adjustrment/ Revaluation - I i ' '
| Balance As On Ashadh End 2079 | -1 2,240,344.83 - - 2,240,3464.83
I Addition During The Year | i | | | '
In"-".l.'l'.ll.li'.-illl.lll - - | - .
I Capitatization | | | |
: Disposal Durinag The Year - | - - H

Adjustment/ Revaluation

Balance As On Ashadh 29, 2080 | -| 2,240,346.83 -1 - 2,240,344.83
I Amortization And Impairment | i | | I I
| A5 On Shrawan 1, 2078 ' | 372,299.49 ' ' 372,299.49
I Amortization Charge For The Year | I | | I I
[ \rriairrient Far The ear ' | 47532557 | - . 475.325.57 |
I Disposals | I | | I |
I Adjustment
| Balance As On Ashadh End 2079 | - 847,625.06 - - BAT,625.06
| Amartization Oharge For The Yesr | | 23,657.11 | ' | 21,457.11

Impairmaent For The Year
Disposals

Adjusmitment

Balance As On Ashadh 29, 2080 | -| 871,282.17 - - 871,282.17
. Capital Wark In Progress | i | | i |
 NetBook Value
| As On Ashadh End 2078 ' = 1,359,545.34 - - 1,359,545.34
| As On Ashadh End 2079 ' =] 1,392,719.77 -1 5 1,392,719.77 |
' As On Ashadh 29, 2080 ' - 1,369.062.66 =l - 1,369,062.66

P sgfan ety aen i, iy SnversatE i ufiaee, Toet /o | 1%



Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

Fig. In NRP
4,13 Deferred Tax Current Year
S [ Deferred [ Deffered Tax | Deffared Tax
g Tax Assels | Liabiliti Assets/|Liabilities)
Deferred Tax On Temporary Differences On Following
ltermns
Laan And Advance Te B/Fis - - | -
Loans And Advances To Customers - = x
irvestment Proparties - = -
Investment Secupities - - | -
Properly & Equipment . §,733.735.00 | 15,733,735)
Employeas’ Dafined Boenefit Plan . - |
Lease Liahiities &,137,337.45 - | 6,137,337
| Provisions - - | -
| Other Temparary Differances 3 982.799.91 -] 9 282,799
Deferred Tax On Temporary Differences 8,620,137 5,733,735 | 2,684,402
Defarred Tax On Carry Forward Of Unused Tax Losges |
Deferred Tax Due To Changes In Tax Rale -
Net Deferred Tax Asset/|Liabilities] As On Year End OF 2,686,402
2080 .
Deferred Tax |Asset]/Liabilities As On Shrawan 1 2079 | 1,301,390
Drigination/[Reversal] During The Year | 1,385,012
Deferred Tax Expense/|Income! Recognized In Profit Or 11,385,017)
Loss
Deferred Tax Expense/lincome] Recognized In Other R
Comprehensive Income
Deferred Tax Expensef|Income] Recognized In Directly In -
Equity
Previcus Year
s | " | s
ﬂeferr‘ed Tax On Tempaorary Differences On Following
ams

| Loan And Advance Ta BIFis E = =

| Loans And Advances To Customers - - B

i Investment Properties - =| F

| Investment Securities = - | -

Property & Equipment - BETO, 060 |8,870,05%.47]
Employees’ Defined Benefit Plan - - =
| Lease Liahilities B.364,550 -| B.344, 549 95
| Provisions - T | =

%0 | arfifs wfdas, 2ows /e sifrr et Foefia sear fer, wbdt-v, smdvenssite



Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

Fig. In NRP
Other Temporary Differences 1,826,700 = ! 1,828,700
Deferred Tax On Temporary Differences 10,171,450 8,870,060 : 1,301,390
Deterred Tax On Carry Forward Of Unused Tax Losses -

. Deterred Tax Due To Changes In Tax Rate | -
Het Deferred Tax Asset/|Liabilities] As On Year End Of 1,301,3%0
2079
Deferved Tax [Asset)fLiabilities As On Shrawan 1, 2078 2,368,075
Acguisition of Sajilo Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Lirmited
Origination/[Reversal] During The Year 3,669,465
Deferrad Tax Expense/(Income| Recognized In Profit Or Loss 3,669,465
Deferred Tax Expersse/income| Hecegnized In Othar -
Comprehensive Incoms
Deferred Tax Expersa/(incomel Recognized In Directly In -
Equity

4.14 Dther Assets

Particulars As at 31 Ashadh, As at 32 Ashadh, “As at 1 Shrawan
2080 2079 |Restated) 2078 [Restated)
Assels Held For Sals
Dther Mon Banking Assets [ |
Bills H_r.-cei'.-ah e i
Accounts Recevabie ! 3,679,637 180,377 35.-ﬁIJ.'.|" |
Accrued Income i
Prepayments And Deposits 2918,910 701,654 43,1893 i

_ln-:ume Tax Deposil I
Deterved Emplovie Expenditune |
ﬁTMrﬁ I . |
Stationery Stock T ER5 122 ik 247 Taé, 214 i
Staff Advances 1,532,510 1,622 557 1,955,207 i

Other | 1791515 2,446,552 87.227 |
Tatal 16,477,696 5,826,426 | 3,145,248

4.15 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions
Particulars s at 31 Ashadh, | As at 32 Ashadh, As at 1 Shrawan

Borrowing From BFis

Setliement And Clearing Accounts

Other
thL

firaty agfae faefta e i, yidl- v, smversals
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk

Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

4.16 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Fig. In NRP

As at 31 Ashadh, As at 32 Ashadh, As at 1 Shrawan

Refinance from NRE
..Slalldlﬁq.l._lqurdiljr Facility
| Lender of Last Resort Facility from NRB
: Secunties Soild under Repurchase Agreements -
| Dther Payables to NRE . =
Tatal | -|

417 Derivative Financial Instruments

Partlculars

. Held Far Trading

. Interest Rate Swan

. Currency Swap
Forward Exchange Centract

I Others o

: Held For Risk Management
Interest Rate Swan

. Currency Swap

. .!.:urwa;'d E:-c.l.'laan_Cu-ntracl

' Other . .
Taotal _ x|

4.18 Deposits from Customers

As 3t 31 Ashadh, 2080 | Asataz

Particulars Ashadh, 2079 [Restated]

Particulars 2080 2079 (Restated) | 2078 (Restated]

As at 31 Ashadh, As at 32 Ashadh, As at 1 Shrawan
2080 2079 |Restated] 2078 [Restated]

" As at 1 Shrawan 2078

|Restated|

Institutions Customers:
I Terim Deposits
. Call Depasits
I Other
. Indfvidun! Customers:
I Term Reposits - -
. Saving Deposifs
I Savings From Members . J08,425 267 I 301,574, 374 I
I Other . - I !

Total 208,425,262 IN1.574,394

&5 684 506

149,664,966
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk

Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

4.1% Borrowing

Particulars
Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government
Other Licensed Institutions
Other
Sub total
Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial
Instilutions

Multitatersl Development Banks
. Dthir Institulions
I Sub total
' Total

4.20 Provisions
Particutars

Frovisicns For Redundancy

Provisian For Restructuring

As at 31 Ashadh, 2080

1,651,889 507

1,651,889,507 |

1,451,889,507

Pending Legal lssues And Taw Litligation =

Onerous Contracts
Other
Tatal

£.720.1 Movement in Provision

Particulars

1,690,868,923

Ashadh, 2077 [Restated) |Restated]

Fig. In NRP
As at | Shrawan 2078
1.490.648.923 | 430,461,581 |

1,690,868,923 | 1,430,541,581

1,430,641,561

As at 31 Ashadh, As at 1 Shrawan 2078
2080 . Mdh_.‘_?.‘ﬂ?ii [Restated] |Restatzd] .
Asat 31 Ashadh, As at 32 Achadh, Asat 1 Shrawan
2080 2077 [Restated) 2078 |Restated)

Balance At Shrawan 1

Provisigns Made During Tha Year

Prowisions Lised Durning The Year

Provisians Reversed Durning The Year

Unwind of Discount

Balance at Ashadh a-n;E

P sgfan ety aen i, iy SnversatE
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

4.21 Other Liahilities

Particulars Asat :;medh'

her.l:li.[x.l'_-.l FI:II: Erﬁpfn‘y@es..[}ahneci Benefit ﬂ-bl..FI;lEItIEIHE [ 15...1 15.1.??5.1
I Liability For Long-5Service Leave 3,494 536 |
I Short-Term Employee Bonetits 1,733,382 |
| Bilts Payable l
| Creditars And Accruals B7e,15Y |
: Interest Payzable On Deposit . l
Interest Fayable On Borrowing
I Liahilitizs On Deferred Grant [ncome
I Unpaid Onidend
I Liahilitizs Under Lease I -1
I Employee Bonus Payable [ 721,492 |
Gther [
I Refundable Seryice Charge 5,852 736 |
' Lease Lilabilitias 20,457,711 I
| Other 7,901,937
 Total 4,557,826

4.21.1 Defined Benefit Dbligations

As at 32 Ashadh,
2079 |Restated)

3.589.927
2,699,739
635 821

4,477 64

&, 28y 711

§1,/51

T23.69496

11,495,870

27815167
5,212,514

62,595,058 |

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Fig. In NRP

- Asat 1 Shrawan

2078 |Restated]
1,540,140
2,907.49% |

702,737

16,184
439
895977

32,900
2455148

33.827.644 |
3,720,453
45,298,136

e il b
I Present Value Of Funded Obligatons |  =| - B
: Tot_aﬁres.enﬁ’a_lue E_if_lfa-t;ﬁlga_t_inrrs -ﬂ_ 1_1:%_?5'_5_ _:]TEE?,_??T_ _I_S-ﬁ.u_lﬁ_nl
| Fair Value OF Plan Assets - o =
| Present Value OFf Net Obligations 4116795 | 9.589.927 | 1,540,140 |
I ﬁecn-gnlz.e-l:.l .l..nahi.l.lt';r“Fnr I:.I;a-.f.ined E-Ehe-!:t .D.bl.lg.alln.ns [ #,1 M,n"?ﬁ [ i 3...33.‘?.‘3'?'?. I T.,Ef;-ﬂ,ﬁd.:l .
4.21.2 Plan Assets
Plan assets comprise:
Particulars Asat3i Ashadh, Asat32 Ashadh, | Asat1Shrawan
: 2080 2079 [Restated) 2078 (Restated)
Equity Securities - | -
| Bovernment Bonds = -
Bank Deposit = | = -
DOther | = =
Tatal [ - - | -
Actual Returp On Plan Assets i =] : !_ -

& | e wiides, 106/ 000
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

Fig. In NRP
Motes To Financial Statements For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080
£.21.3 Movement in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations
Asatd] Ashadh, | Asat32Ashadh, | Asat1Shrawan |
FlFHcutEs 2080 2079 [Restated) 2078 (Restated] ‘

Defined Benefit Dbligations at Shrawan 1

Actuarial Losses/|GAINS] |

Benefits Faid By The Plan

Acouisition of Sajilo Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha
Lirmitad

Current Service Costs and interest |

Defined Bepefit Obligations at Ashadh End [

£.21.4 Mevement in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

i Asat3] Ashadh,  Asat32Ashadh,  Asat]Shrawan
2080 2079 (Restated] | 2078 [Restated)

Fair Value OF Plan Assets AL Shrawan 1 | - -

Contributions Paid Into The Plan - -

Benefits Pawd During The Year
Actuarizl |Losses] Gans | -.- |

. Eypected Return On Plan Assets | = | = :
Fair Value OF Plan Assets Al Ashadh End | - -

4.21.5 Amount Recognized in Profit or Loss

i R (Reieg) T1 SRS Neste

Current Seryice Costs
Interest On Obligation
Expected Return On Flan Assets

| Tatal

I 2
e tilas } Asat 31 Ashadh,  Asat32Ashadh,  Asat1Shrawan
|
|

4. 21.6 Amount Recegnized in Other Comprehensive Income

As at 31 Ashadh,

As at 32 Ashadh,
2080

Particulars 2079 [Restatad]

As at 1 Shrawan
2078 |Restated)

Actuarial [GamlLoss
. Tatal

P sgfan ety aen i, iy SnversatE aifitr ufqdas, vous soco | &Y



Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

Fig. In NRP
4. 21.7: Actuarial Assumptions
s mres | e | e
Discount Hate .
| Expeited Ratirn On Plar Asset :
| Future Salary Increase
I Withdrawal .Ha'!E
4.22 Debl securities issued
Particulats ;-hﬂﬂ-'l-hhidh, As at 32 Ashadh, | As at 1 Shrawan
2080 2079 (Restated) | 2078 |Restated)
Debt Securities Issued Designated as at Fair Value % T .
Through Profit-or Loss
I Debt Securities Issuied at Amortized Cost I
. Tatal - - ‘ - - .
4 23 Subordinated Liabilities
[ Az at31 [ As at 32 As at 1 Shrawan
Particulars. Ashadh, 2080 | Ashadh, 2079 2078 [Restated)
| [Restated]
| Redeemable Preference Zhares *
I Irredeamalbls Cumulative Prelerence Shares [Liabilities - . .
Component|
' Other - | : |
I Tatal - | - : - I
4.24 Share capital
As at 32
Particulars i %"ﬂ““"' A:::::;, lﬂ;ﬂ g;g i'lﬂu"::'l'
| Ordinary Shares 250,000,000 162,500,000 . 162,500,000 I
I Convertible Praterence Shares [Equity Component Onlyl | - I I
I Irredesmable Preference Shares [Equity Component Only| |
I Perpetual ODebt I[Equity Companent Only) | | [
Froposed Bonus Share
I Tatal | 250,000,000 - 152,500,000 I 152,500,000 I

%% | Fift ufagas, 2e0q s 0ce sfirry argfa e s f, watd-y, Sves=s



Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauli 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080
Fig. In NRP
&.24.1: Qrdinary shares

., | As at31 Ashadh, | Asat 32 Ashadh, | As at 1 Shrawan

| 2080 2079 (Restated) | 2078 (Restated)
Authorized Capital |
| 2,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each " aoo000o0 | 300,000,000 | 300,000,000 |
' 1ssued capital | I |
| 2,600,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each 250,000,000 | 152,500,000 | 152,500,000 |
| Subscribed and paid up capital. I ] |
| 2,500,000 Drdinary Shares of Rs. 100 each 250,000,000 | 152,500,000 | 152,500,000 |
| Total | 250000000 152,500,000 152,500,000

4.24.2 Shareholders halding 0.5% or more shares

As on Ashadh 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023) g Sty hmz:-i'zfm Huty 16,
i wot | | ot | Noat
| g | Wootsiars | e | 320 | SO, | Amon
Domestic Ownership [Promoter)

. Kiumari Bank Limited il 10.00% - 250,000 [ 25,000,000 [ 15.3?%“ 250,800 [ 25,000, 000 .
I ﬂepa;l Investment I'-;IEga Bank Lid I m.u{i% Eﬁﬂ,ﬂﬂﬂ.. ?S.UUU,UU.LI 16.3%% I 0,000 | -IS.IE.IU-IJ.IJLIU I
I FPushpa Jyoti Dhungana . 00 I 50,000 I 5,000,000 I 3.78% I fn,ana | 5,000,000 I
| Baburam Thags 1.40% | 000 3500000 230% 35000 3500000
I Krizhne Mumar Shrestha I 1.38% . 34,000 | L400,000 . 2.23% - 34,000 | 3,400, 0013 .
I Ghanshyam Pandey I 1.20% 30,000 . 3000600 1.97% I 0,000 | 3000000 I
I Bamdey Gaull I 1.80% I 20,000 . 4,000,000 I 1.31% I #0000 | <000, L .
. Gyanendra Subedi I 0.72% . 18,000 - 1,800,000 I 1.18% . 18.000 | 1,800,000 .
. P.E-l.rl:rala Gaulam ' 0.72% - 'IB,i]ﬂU | |:BUU.UUU | |.1E“.“i:“ 18,000 [ -I.BU'IJ.-IJ{JI] I
I Sita Prazad Pokharel 0.64% I 16,000 . 1,600,000 I 1.05% I 14,000 | 1,600,000 I
| Rukrina Thapa | 040 | 15000 1,500,000 | 098% 16000 1500000 |
. Lal Chandra Upretl 0.60% - 15,000 | 1,500,000 | U.?E%“ 15,000 | 1500000 I
| Shkatikapur Thapa L] - -] o 10000 1100000
I Sakuna Adhikari 1Shwakati] I = = | 5 0:48% I 10,000 | 1,000,000 .
I Ram Awatar Yaday I _| - | 0.4 8% I Tﬂ..ﬂﬂﬂ | 1,000,000 I
I Baburam Bughathoks . 2 | - = 0.66% - 0,000 | 1,000,080 .
| Madan Prasad Wosti el - | ase% | wngoa 1000000
I Maheshwer Karkl - -] 5 0.46% I 10,000 I 1,000,000 I
| Bowan Karner:Shacma - -] | oeew| 1oooa| 1000000

Hhrna argfan fadta ae fa., waT-y, SmieTsEs i ufqaed, woes /0ce | £



Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

Fig. In NRP
Jay Ram Panta | -| . - 046% | 10,000 1,000.000
Siddhi Lal Magia | | | neen | imooo | 1000000
| Shambhu Prasad Dahal - - | 0% w0000 1,000.000
Purnima Kumari Bhandari . ‘ -] | ose% | 10000 1000000
Tulsiram Pokharel I -] =] - 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000
Swilat Majhi | | - | osew|  tneoo| 1000000
Rajendra Sangrauia - - - D.66% 10,000 1,000, 00
Sher Bakadur Shrestha - - | - 0.48% 1 10,000 i 1,000,000
Damodar Panta - - l - 0.66% I 10,000 | 1,000,000
Bir Bahadur Thapa = | - - 0.64% I 10,000 | 1,000,080
Jamuna Devi Sharma | -| | o] 10000 1000000
Ram Prasad Pudasaini . - | D&% | 0000 1,000000
Tul.5| 5|-'IFE.5thEI. - - . - ﬂ.ﬁb;‘.r; I tl]‘,ﬁl]ﬂ | 1,000,000
i Bina Parajull - -] - 0,485 I 10,000 L 1,000,000
‘Humala Devi Sharma - - - wee%| 10000 1,000,000
| Kedar Kumar ke ] -] | esm oo sogom
4.24.3 Ordinary Share Ownership
Ptk _ ﬂi.ﬁﬂilﬂﬂ“ 32.03.2079
Percent Bimount Percent Amount
| Domestic Dwnership |Promoter] | . . .
Kepal Government [
| “A° Clzss Licensed Institutions I 20.00% 50000000 I J2.79% I 50,000,000
Other Licensed Institutions ; [ I .
| Other Institutions |
Other | A100% | 102,500,000 47.21% 102,500,000
Domestic Ownership [Public] | [ = .
! .He;ﬁa-l.ﬁ;ﬁe.rnrnenf ;
& Class Licensed Institutions |
i.l-jﬂ'-l.er I..-|EEI.'|E£'-I:| .|.i'l‘..i|;!.l.1.|.1;il:|l15 ;
| !
| Dther Institutionz |
| Other | 39.000% 97,500,000 |
| ! :
| Foreign Dwnership Promotar | - - - -
' Foreign Ownership Public | : = - =}
 Total | 1| 250,000,000 1 152 500,000

B | A wffee, 2oet/ece siftrry crafa fadta e fa., uditd-», sndvens=is



Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk

Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080
Fig. In NRP

4.25 Reserves

Particulars

| Statutory General Reserve

As at 31
Ashadh, 2080

4431500 |

As at 32 Ashadh, 2079
[Restatad]

As at 1 Shrawan 2078
|Restated)]

3.539,223

Capital Resarve

I Exchange Equalization Reserve

| Investrment Adjustment Reserve

[ .l'.:nrpl:lr.ate Social REEFI'DFIHbIlIt:‘f
| ‘Raserve

170,670 |

211,555

174,541

Client Protection Fund
| Capital redemphion reserve
| Requlatory Reserve

Assets Revaluation Reserve

132611 .

26,381.868 |

15,608,453 |

115,735

! Fair Value Rezerve
f Oividend EqIJEIlIIEItIEII'I.h'E'EEH'E

: Actuarial Reserve

I Special Reserve

! _Ilnbentiiré E"ﬁdem;.rtmn ﬁesewe
I Cither Reserve

I Doferred Tax Raserve

T Staff Traimn g. Fund

' Total '

1,385,012 |

32,356,788 |

4.246 Contingent Liabilities and Commiiments

20,170,352

176,961

8196297

10,089,442

Particulars

| Contingent Liabilities

Undrawn And U-nd:ISIEIJIFEEIi Facilities

I Capital Commitment

As at 31

_ Asat32 Ashadh, | Asat1Shrawan
Ashadh, 2080 2079 [Restated) [zursllm-hhdl

! 4
Lease Commmitrmient

Litigatidn
|
Others

| Totat

firaty agfae faefta e i, yidl- v, smversals
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauli 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

4£.26.1 Capital Commitments

Fig. In NRP

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the institution but provision has nol been

made in financial statements.

I Particulars

Capital Commitments In Relation ‘.ru Property And
Equipment

Aporovid And Contracted For
I Aporoved Bat Mot Contracted For
I Sub Total
| Capital Gommitments In Relation To Intangible Assets
. Approved And Contracted For
. Approved But Mot Contracted For
I Sub Total
I Tatal

4.26.2 Lease Commitmaeants

Asat 31
Ashadh; dug0

As at 32 Ashadh, | Asat1Shrawan |
2079 (Rostated] 2078 (Restated)

Particulars

Operating Lease Commitments

Future Minimum Lease Payments Under Non Sancellable
Operating Lease, Where The Institution Is Lessee

. Mot Later Than 1 Year

| Later Than 1 Year But Not Later Thar 5 Years
I Later Than 5 Years

I Sub Total

I Finance Lease Commitments [Undiscounted)

Future Mimimum Lease Payments Under Mon Cancellable
Dperating Lease, Where Institution

I Mol Later Than 1 Year

I Later Than 1 Year ELit.NuT.LaTul' Tlmn.E ::'r_-ar-s
. Later Than 5 Years

| Sub total

I Grand Total

4.26.3 Litigation

| As at 1 Shrawan
| 2078 [Restated] |

Asat3l | Asat32 Ashadh,
Ashadh, 2080 | 2079 [Restated)

The microfinance has not been a party to any litigation claims during the fiscal year 2079.80

B0 | g1 ufmeed, 10u% /020
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

Fig. In NRP
427 Interest Income
Particulars: For the period ended *Restated For the Year
: ; 2%th Ashadh, 2080 ended 32nd Ashadh, 2079
Cash Apd Cash Equivalent 3065 634 24T 66T
Dus From Nepai Rastra Bank
Placement With Bank And Financial Institutions
Lean And Advances Tu Financial Institutions
Loans And Advances To Customers 300,810,872 283,063,588
Irvestment Eacurrhes
Loan And Advances To Staff
Dther .
Total Interest Income 303,857,504 m.EﬁE,EE_
i 28 Interest Expenses
S For the period ended *Restated For the Year
s 29th Ashadh, 2080 | ended 32nd Ashadh, 2079
Diue Tu Banl And Fnan clal Institutlons |
Due To N-EFI:I[ Raslra Bank
Deposils From Customers 16,379,049 10,881,642
Eorrrpwmg 213,981,571 | 171,489,551
Debt Securifies I!m.red
Subordinated Liabililies
Other 2, &M
Tatal Interest Expense 230,363, 503 182,371,213
4,29 Fees and Commission Income
Pacticulars: For the period ended *Restated For the Year
i 29th Ashadh, 2080 uﬂaﬂﬂﬁﬁlﬁhﬂdh. 2079
Loan Administration Fees
Servics Fees 16,497,402 24,413,345 |
Commitmant Faes 5 i
liam 1.sau ance .Faes
Prepayment find Swap Fees
Remittance Fees
Brokerage Feas
Other Fees And Commission lncame 19,969 459 1,458,704
'-rnt;iFm and-'l:nmm‘ts_lgl-l;ni;:n-mi 16,656,861 26,372,252

firaty agfae faefta e i, yidl- v, smversals
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk

Notes To Financial Statements For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080
Fig. In NRP
4 .30 Fees and Commission Expense

5 For the period ended *Restated For the Year
Particutars 29th Ashadh, 2080 ended 32nd Ashadh, 2079

ﬂlt-kEﬁ ‘age - -

.ﬁ.Th-'I T-'!angemcnl Fees - -
Viza Master Cérd i‘ees - -
Guarsnies :T.:u:_unr'_r_u:s_sil:‘_r_h Fees = :
Brokerage = -
D0/ TTS Swaft Fees - -

Ram:llanre Fees and Cn mmuss:u-rr - -

‘Other Fees and r‘ommussmn F_upenﬁz - -
Taotal Fees and Commission = =

431 Net Trading Income

For the period ended 29th *Restated For the Year ended 32nd
‘Ashadh, 2080 Ashadh, 2079

Ehange& |r:| Fatr Value {'If Tradlng ﬁ.hse'ls | - =

Galn.FLus.s On Dispo &al Dl Tr admg Aguets - -

‘Particulars

Intarest |ncoma On Tradmg Assats | . -
Dividend Income On Trading Assets e E
Gain/Loss Foreign Exchange Transaction ‘ - -
Other ' - =

Net Trailng Incom j : =
4.32 Dther Operating Income

X For the perlod ended 29th | *Restated For the Year ended 32nd
Parhcailars Ashadh, 2080 _ HKshadn 2079

Fareign Exchange Revaluation Gain T =

GamnfLess On Sale Of lnvestment Securities | - -

Fair Valua Gain/Loss On [nvestment ' -
Properties

Dividend On Equity Instruments - -

fainfLoss On Sale OF Property And
Equipment

Gain/Loss On Sale II}F Imes1rnenl. PI‘I:IFIEI‘lﬁf - 5
'[il-::ra.trl.;g J:éaéar. Inmmq. -l N
Gain/Loss On Sale Of Gold And Silwer - :

Other z -]

Tatat £ =

39 | e ufiered, Rosd/oen sifrr et Foefia sear fer, wbdt-v, smdvenssite



Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

Fig. In NRP
4.33 Impairment Charge/ IReversall for Loan and Other Losses
Particulars For the Eidn: Snins ' e .Ifnr.ll.i.l ﬁﬁrﬂwﬂﬂ
Impairment Charge/{Reversali On Loan And i
Advances To B/Fis |
Impairment Charge/Reversall 0n Loan And 1,276,578) 4,011,652 |
Advances To Customer |
i.rn-parrrnem L‘.:hal;l;é.-"{Haversal.l n Financial I
Irwestrnent |
Impairment Charge/|Reversall On Placement I
With Banks:And Financial Institutions |
Impairment Charge/iReversal) On Property And I
Equipment |
1rn.pairmHnT Charge/IReversall On Goodwill And |
Intangible dzaets
Impairment Charge/IReversall On Investrment
FProperties
! Total [1,276,5781 &,011,682 I
434 Personnel Expense
Nt For the periodended | *Restated For the Year
: 29th Ashadh, 2080 ended 32nd Ashadh, 2079
Salary T 27,141,296
Allowances 29 610,241 29,735,134
Gratuity Expense E_ZIE_BE-_E Z.ﬂ;?:'.-"ﬂ_?
Provident Fund 3,028,128 2,459,919
Unitorm 1,000 -
Training & Development Eipurlﬁa 1.‘52.?..35--.!; E.Ehﬁ:l;ﬁg
Leave Encashment 1,712.019 BZ4.825
[ i'-'[E:-I-ical
Insurance 294,883 37e%
.:f.rnpl-n:.'eas .1.l.‘;-.’:_en-F.i'-'B i
Cash-Settled Share-Baszed Payments
Pension Expense
Finance Expense Under NFRSs
‘Other Expenses Related To Staff 245,839 202.255
' Subtotal 72,374,249 66,175,173
I Employees Bonus . - . 553,3?'?
Grand total 72,374,249 66,729,051

firaty agfae faefta e i, yidl- v, smversals
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

Fig. In NRP
4.35 Other Operating Expense
Particulars. For the period ended: *Restated For the Year
o 29th Ashadh, 2080 ‘ended 32nd Ashadh, 2079

Directors' Fee - &T2000 575500

{Ju'r.-n:lqrh' Expense 2,000 5'_?‘?‘?5

Auditors” Remuneration T, &00 T00,600

Dther Audit Related Expense 1_.!]2_1_.132 1 ._:I_E!B:&_}E?
Prifesiann fad Lpasl Beperias 318,829 kLot ol

Technical Service Expenszes 1,078, 70 72 485

Office Administration Expense £.35.1 21,236,061 24,369 589

ﬂp_ul'uting Lu._-.;s_u_- Eup-nnw (~5IZI._E.E|5 £9,137

Operating Expense OF Investment Propertias

Commision & Discount

Corporate Social Responsibility Expanse -

Client Protection Expenses

Oneraus Lease Provisions

Other _ -

Finance cost on Lease Liabilities 2452076 2.866,135
| Total 2hRL V23
4.35.1 Otfice Administration Expense

Y o) For the period ended "Rnhl‘nd- For the Year
Earkifare 29th Ashadh, 2080 ended 32nd Ashadh, 2079

‘Waler And Electricily BAE DEZ bih 46T

Repair And Maintenance =

il Building

{B] Vahicle 161,871

{€] Computer And Accessories

1D} Office Equipment &nd Furniture 222,284

{E) Othar £98,355 333,965
Lot B S

Insurance 991,838 900,745

Vostage, Tele, lelephone, Fax 1,037,323 1,186,291

Prnting And Stationery [, 343,030 2,268,363

HNews Paper. Books &nd Journals - -

Advertisement 470579 430,870

B | T Wi, 10t fode
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk

Notes To Financial Statements For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080

wfyr wgfae fadt g ., wWidy, S

Fig. In NRP
Donation - I
Securily Expence
Deposil And Loan Guarantee Premium
Travel Allowance And Expense 3.952.B74 3,657 608
Loan Security Premium Expenses -
Loan Processing Fee Expenses
Hospitality Expenses 200,708 39,1832
Annual/Special General Meoting Expense 105,570 27 280
.nth.m; =y = i
14 Fuel Expenses 1,712,422 1,427,797
18] Registration & Renewal Expenses 237 550 145,450
|C] Transpartation Expersos 43,600 73,880
{0} Share Registrar Expenses 50,000
IIIE.l. Setvice Chémges. Expanne 3,731,872 5,688,480
{Fl Otfice Cleaning Expenses 3,389,494 3,018,567
iG] Bank Charges 1,861,247 2,696,080
{H] Share Issue Expenses - 341,134
{I] Other Expances B43, 238 790,100
Total 21,235,061 24,369,589
4.36 Depreciation & Amortization
Particulars Fokihie pariod anded 91 “Hominted for the oor
tiew Ashadh, 2080 ended 32nd Ashadh, 2079
_H'EDI'E'CIE_'Iiﬂn fn F'rape_rw hmiEq_urp el 11?-112?13 1 1-;355.,‘.‘-'3{_
Depreciation On Investment Properiy
Armariization O Intangible Assels 23,607 475,326
Total | 11,734,935 | 11,522,060
&.37 Non Operating Income  Amount in MPR
a el e o For the period ended 29th "Restated For the Year
B Ashadh, 2080 ended 32nd Ashadh, 2079
Hecovery ol Loan Written Off
Other ncome
Total . =

s ufides, 2008 /020 | 9



Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk

Motes To Financial Statementis For The Period Ending 31 Ashadh, 2080
Fig. In NRP
4.38 Non Operating Expense

For the period ended 29th | "Restated For the Year ended 32nd

Rafticqlars Ashadh, 2080 Ashadh, 2077

Loan Written O

Redundancy Provision - =

Expense Of Restructiuring
Total - -

4.3% Income Tax Expense Amount in NPR

For the period ended 29th | *Restated For the Year ended 32nd

R Ashadh, 2080 Ashadh, 2079

i
l
|
Current Tax Expanse - B,217,569
Current Year = 8210549
Adjustments For Prior Years
Daferred Tax Expenss (1,285,012) 13,669,445)

Origenation And Keversal OF Temporary [1,385,012] 13,649,405}
Dilfarences

Changes In Tay Rale

Recogmition OF Previously Unrecogrized Tax

Losses

Total Income Tax Expense (1,386,012] L.548,104

4.3%1: Reconcitiation of Tax Expense and Accounting Profit

Particulars | 31.03.2080 | 32.00.2079 |
Prolil Befare Tax [413,053] 14,109,279
| Tax Amount At Tax Rate D7 30 % ' ] 4,832.794 |
I Add: Tax Effect OFf Expenses That Are Not Deductible For Tax Purposa I I 2,377,681 I
I Less; Tax effect on exempt income I I )
| Add/(Less):Tax effect on NERS adjustments ' ' 2,954,087 |
. Lass: Tax effect of expenses that are deductible for tox purpose - - T1 Fa69 61? .
| Vol locuma Tok Experisn ' - 8,217,569

I Effective Tax Rate I 0% 51%

L&E]ﬂﬁﬁ'l yfiEres 3aws /oo Mﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁhm@. e T A e



5. Disclosure and Additional Infarmation
5.1. Risk Management

In particular, the microfinance program provides financial services to the needy and poor
households. Since people in such households lack awareness and business skills, one has been
very careful while doing financial transactions with such people, This type of financial service is
also more prone to risk as financial services have to he provided by making the person aware
and capable of such services,. Therefore, identification of risk has been carried out and adequate
control system has been adopted in order to mitigate such current and possible future risks in
the Microfinance. The robust risk management capabilities are imperative in order to achieve
an effactive risk management framework and contain the risks associated with the business, a
fully functional Risk Management Committee is responsible for identifying reperting. controlling
and managing credit risk, operational risk, market risk & liquidity risk. The Risk Management
Committee oversees global, macro, micro and departmental level risk that arise out of daily
business operation as well as on periedic basis and are put to the oversight of Senior Management,
Risk Management Committee and the Board committee to discuss the reports thereon and issue
instructions as appropriate.

Risk Management Commitlee:

The Risk Management Committee is an independent committee of the Board of Directors that
has, as its sole and exclusive function, responsibility for the risk management policies of the
Microfinance and oversight of implementation of risk management framework of Microfinance,
The committee assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with
regard to risk appetite thal the Microfinance is able and willing to assume in its exposures and
business activilies, risk management, compliance framework, and governance structure thal
supports it, It periedically reviews the risk management process to ensure its integrity, accuracy,
and reasonableness. It also reviews whether the internal control and risk management system
is adeauate or not to ensure well-ordered and prudent conduct of business. The committes
is to review the overall risk management structure and monitor the effectiveness of the risk
managemeant system,

Risk Governance

Microfinance implemented policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level
arising to the microfinance and has trained risk culture among the employees by establishing
ownership mentality, capacity building pregrams, well defined job responsibilities and inhabiting
yood ethical culture. The Risk Management Committee is responsible for the establishment of,
and compliance with, policies relating to Operation risk & Credit risk,

The Microfinance’s risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for majntaining
risk within the Microfinance's risk blanket is dropped down from the Board to the appropriate
functional, client business, senior management and committees, The Board has set policies
and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation, and control/ menitoring in
line with NRE directives, and has effectively implemented the same. The effectiveness of the
Micrafinance's internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its committees, senior
management, and internal audit committes,

5.1.1. Liquidity Risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk to meet short term financial dermmands. This usually occurs due to the
inability to convert a security or hard asset to cash without a loss of capital and/or income in the
process. Liguidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Microfinance might be unable
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to meet its payment obligations when they fall due, as a result of mismatches in the timing of
the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances. Such scenarios could occur when
funding needed for liquid asset positions 1s not available to the Microfinance on acceptable terms.
Due to lack of liquidity, entities are not able to invest as per the demand of the customer, they are
not able to repay the savings and other legal obligations on time. Theretare, the microfinance has
managed the liquidity as per its requirement in time te prevent such a situation.

5.1.2. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the petential that a change in overall interest rates will reduce the value of
a bond or other fixed- rate investment. The Microfinance will take the following measures to
minimize the risk arising from interest rates:

a. Only assets and liabilities affected by changes in interest rates has been included in the assets
and liabilities,

b, When analyzing the difference in the situation where the payment term of assets and liabilities
does not match, the amount of cash balance and non-payment of interest has beenincluded,

c.lnarder to manage and minimize the interest rate risk, the Microfinance has prepared gquarterly
[Dctober, December, March and mid-July] details and submitted them Lo the Supervision
Department of Nepal Rastra Bank within fifteen days after the end of the quarler,

9.1.3. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability that any creditor will not be able to repay the loan as per the condition
accepted by the berrower. Creditis the main wealth or sources of income of any financial institution.
The future of the financial institution is at stake when the borrower is unable to repay the loan
borrower had agreed at the time of taking the loan. Therefore, it is necessary to study the impacting
indicators to get information about the condition of the loan at risk. In erder to prevent the loss of
the loan invested and to minimize the risks related to it, Standard loan disbursement procedure is
followed to reduce the risk accordingly. Since every employee involved in the process of approving
the loan and investing will be assigned a certain responsibility, the concerned employee will have
to invest the loan realizing their responsibility, The following procedures/practices have been
followed:

* Analyze the Requirement and Repayment Capacily for the demanded loan,
» |nwestin lpans based on disciplinary records of the borrower,

+  Monitor utility of the borrowed fund in the following months of borrowing and ensuring the
fund is utilized for income generating activities/businesses,

+«  Motivated members lo increase savings,

*» Taking details of the borrower's business and income and expenditure at the time of loan
application, for business loans,

» Taking necessary docurnents of secured property, if collateral loan,
+  Classify the loans and arrange the loss provision as per the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank,
+ [isbursement of loans within the limits prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank,

* Continuously monitor and inspect the lpan from the unit manager, branch manager and
maonitoring level. [T the interest is not paid on time or with delay, the branch should report
to the monitoring, the monitoring to the regional manager and the regional manager to the
chief executive officer within 24 hours with detailed details.
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* |nthe monthly performance appraisal of the staffs, a definite score will be given in this title
including the title of loan recovery of the branch to be monitored.

= Fach branch will be audited twice a year While conducting such audit, it is compulsory
for Internal Auditors to Inspect the monthly meetings of few of the units and submit the
details observed In meetings through Audit report, either observed compliance and other
discrepancies or not.

5.1.4, Operational Risk

The risk that arises during the day-to-day operations of an entity is called operating risk. In this
program, small but large number of transactions has been done, decentralized working methad
has been adopled, more focus has been given on area expansion, priority has been given to cosl
reduction, Due to lack of integrated information systern, expansion of programs in rural areas
with lack of infrastructure and lack of appropriate technology to provide services as per the needs
of the customers, there is always a possibility of operational risk in this program, The entity has
arranged the necessary stalf to carry outl various responsibilities for daily operations, All the
employees have to carry out their post responsibilities in the working process within the policy
rultes specified by the entity, But sometimes due Lo the negligence of the employees and personal
interests, the organization is at risk when it goes beyond the policy rules. This type of risk is
likely to reduce the entity's income, the increase entity's credit risk [Reputation Risk). Since the
aperational risk is due to internal factors, this risk can be reduced only if the internal contral
system is strengthened.

5.1.5. Market Risk

The Microfinance recagnizes market risk as the possibility for loss of earnings or economic value
to tha Microfinance caused due (o adverse changes in the market level of interest rates or prices of
securities [equity), fareign exchange rates and volatilities of those prices, Microfinance hasan Asset
Liability Management Committee [ALCO) which meets periodically to discuss product pricing for
deposits and advances and maturity profiles of assets and liabilities, articulating interest rate, view
of Microfinance, funding policy and balance sheet management, After Understanding the market
conditions and demands, the Board and the management bring pregrams to suit the potentials
and conditions of the market, and reduce the risk by providing appropriate respansibilities to the
employees from the top to the bottom hased on their capabilities. For this, the internal control
system has been strengthened.
The following has been considered in market analysis:

» Information about competitors’ services [programs| and interest rates

* Aftitude of the members towards the organization

*  Perception of ather banks and financial institutions towards this micrefinance

« Costof seryice

« Fluctuations from changes in policy rules

= Strategies adopted by other organizations to attract their customers

+  Customer dropuutfratention rate
5.1.4. Institutional or Strategic Risk

Strategic risk is often a major factor in determining a company's worth, particularily observable if
the company experiences a sharp decline in a short period of time. Due to this and its influence on
compliance risk, it is a leading factor in medern risk management. In order to manage this-risk,
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the following things has been considered:

+ Sirategies has baen decided or modified according lo the overall economic and social
environment of the country,

= Keeping abreast of the services provided by their competitors and their status,

»  Providing service facilities as much as possible without giving in to the expectations and
desires of our customers

« Adopting appropriate strategies in resource mobilization,
5.1.7. Internal Control Risk

The Board and Management is committed to managing risks and in controfling its business and
financial activities ina manner which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities,
avoid or reduce risks which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure comgliance with
applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience to external events. To achieve this, the
Board and management has adopted policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation,
risk mitigation and control/monitaring.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board,
s Committees, Managemenl and Internal Audit. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
effectiveness of the entity's system of internal contrel during the year and provided feedback to
the Board as appropriate. The entity has Its own Internal Audit function to maintain in dependency
on the internal control system of institution. The Internal Audit Departmenl monitors campliance
with policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures across the Company
through its program of business/unit audits, The Internal Audit function is focused on the areas of
greatesl risk as detarmined by a risk-based assessment methodology. Internal Audit reparts are
guarterly forwarded to the Audit Committee, The findings of all audits are reported to the Chief
Executive Officer and Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective measures,

5.1.8B. Compliance Risk

The Microfinance is committed to follow best practices and market standards in the areas of
accountability, transparency and business ethics. It aims for zero tolerance of misconduct. In the
day-to- day operations the three lines of defense model defines the roles and responsibilities for
compliance and integrity risk in the Microfinance, The first line of defense lies with the respective
Microfinance deparlments and units, which are responsible for ensuring that compliance risks
are idenlified, understood and reported lo the management and to Compliance Officer The
second line of defense lies with Compliance Officer, which assesses and monitors the compliance
and integrity risks and coordinates its control activities with the Risk Management Unit. The Chief
Compliance Officer reports to the CED, Internal Audit Department is the third line of defense. The
Compliance function assists the Microfinance in identifying, assessing, monitoring and reporting
on compliance risks In matters relating to the institution, its operations and the personal conduct
of staff members.

5.1.9. Fair value of financial assets and Liabilities

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity specific measurement. For some assets
and liabilities, observable market transactions or market information might be available. For
other assets and liabilities, observable market transactions and market information might not
be available. However, the objective of a fair value measurement in both cases is the same - to
estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to transfer the liability
would take place between market participants at the measurement date under current market
conditions [i.e., an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a market participant
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that holds the asset or owes the Liability].
Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level i- Level T inputs are quoted prices [unadjusted] in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurament date. Held for trading and available for
sale investments have been recorded using Level Tinputs.

Level Z- Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
nbservable for the asset or liabillty.either directly or indirectly,

Level 3-Level 3 inputs are uncbservable inputs for the asset or liability. The following table shows
an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

I T |
- : 2079-80 | 2078-79 |
Particulars . i :

Levell | Levelll  Lewelll | Levell | Levelll  Levelll |

Quoted Equities I = |
Ungquoted Equities _ | |

Quoted Mutual Funds | =| i =

|

Total | | -

5.2. Capital management

The Microfinance’s capital management policies and practices support its business strategy and
ensure that it is adequately capitalized to withstand even in severe macroeconomic downturns.
The microfinance is a licensed institution providing financial services therefare it must comply
with capital requirement of Nepal Rastra Bank,

[i] Qualitative disclosures

Mepal Rastra Bank has directed the Microfinance to develop own internal policy, procedures
and struclures to manageall malerial risk inherent in business for assessing capilal adeguacy
in relation to the risk profiles as well as strategies for maintaining capital levels, This includes
basic reguirernents of having good governance, efficlent process of managing all material risks
and an effective regime for assessing and malntaining adequate capital. The Micrafinance BODs
approved risk management policies for proper governance. The Microfinance has developed
a comnprehensive ICAAP document which is subject lo review every year, The |CAAP has two
major components; first s an internal process to identity, measure, manage and report risks
to which the microfinance 15 exposed or could be exposed in the future; and second is an
internal process to plan and manage a microfinance's capital so as to ensure adequate capital,
The microfinance prepares the ICAAP report annually complying with the NRB requirement,
The report is reviewed and analyzed by Risk Management Committee and Board.

i} Quantitative disclosures
Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy:
Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components:
31.03.2080
- Amount in NPR
' Paid Up Equity Share Capital 250,000,000

Irredeemable Man-Cumulative Preference Shares -

Particulars
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Share Premium -

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares |
Statutory General Reserves 4,437,500
Retained Earnings (10,571,092)

Un- Aud led Current "l’ear Cumulatwe F‘mﬁt -

Special Reserve Fund -

Capilal Adjustment Reserves 1
Dividend Iéqualizatinn Reserves 1 -
Capital Redemption Reserves Fund ‘ -

Deferred Tax Reserve 1,386,012 -
Less: Goodwill 1

Less: Intangible Assets . -
Less: Fictitious Assets -
lLess: Deferred Tax Assets |2,686,402)

Less: Investment In Equitl_.-' of anense:t Flnanr_lal Institutions -

Less: Investment In Eqmty Of Institutions With Financial Interests 1 -
i..ess: Im-'estrne.nt In Eqmt*,r ﬂf Institutions In E:-u:ess []f L1rn|t5 ‘ -
Less: Investments Ar:smg Out Of Underwriting Commitments | -
Less: Purchase Of Land & Building In Excess Of Limit & Utilized -

Less: Reciprocal Cross holdings . -

Less: Other Deductions -

Total Tier 1 Capital 242 559 018 -
Tier 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components:
Fattictans Amount in NPR
General Loan Loss Pravisian 6,769,488

Additional Loan Less Provision _ -
Cumulative And/0Or Redeemable Preference Share ‘ - |
Subardinated Term Debt | =
Hybrid Capital Instruments .- -

Exchange Equalization Reserves -

Investments Adjustment Resaerves : z

Assels Revaluation Reserves ' -
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Special Reserve Fund

wfyr wgfae fadt g ., wWidy, S

Total Tier 2 Capital 6,769,688
Total Qualifying Capital ' '
fae s Aot A NPR
Core Capital (Tier 1] 262,559,018
Supplementary Capital [Tier 2] 6,769,588
Total Capital Fund 269 328,706
Statement of Risk Weig_hted Assets [RWAJAL the month end of Ashadh, 2080
A. On-Balance-Sheet Items
SN Description o | iR RWA
1 Cash Balance 0 1,416,348 -
2 Gold (Tradaklel 0 - =
3 Mrb Balance i - -
4 | Investment Ta Govt Bond 0
5 [ Investment To Mrb Bond o i -
b | Loan Against Cwn Fd ] - -
7 | Loan .ﬁ;‘gérnst Govt. Bond 0 =l -
8 | Accrued Interests On Govt, Bond a - -
7 investment To Youth And Small Entreprensurs Self-Employ- i - -
ment Fund
Tﬂ | ﬁﬁlanceﬁnﬁnmﬂﬁtl’c él-an]l.-s .A.rtd. ﬁ_r.\an.u:i.ai inﬁ.ti.il.u;!-'mns _2[] f‘IE}'F'HE? r HTESTE_BE
11 | Loan Against Other Banks” And Financial Institutions” Fd 20 i -1
12 | Foreign Bank Batance 20 - i
=1 Money At Call 0 = -
14 | Loan &gainst internationally Rated Hank Guarantes 20 - -
1% | Investment Ta Int&rrTa-I};n_aII;F_-'t;'rﬂd Banks i) - -
& | Inter-Bapk Leniding 20 - -
17 | Investmant On Shares/Debentures/Bonds 100 -
18 | Other Investmenls 100 " -
19 | Loans & Advances, Bills Purchase/Discount 100 1,823,821 475 | 1,823,821 475
0. | Fixed Assets 100 36,151,449 | 36,151,649
21 Hetnterest Receivabies [Toral Ir - 8 - Interest Supsense] oo N *
72 Mel Non-Hanking Assst 100 - -
73 | Other Assets [Except Advance Tax Payment| 100 TGATTE96 | V4ATT.696
24 | Real Estate/Residential Housing Loans Exceeding The Limits 150 - T -
| Total On-Balance-sheel Items [A) 1.991,646,396 | 1.897.606,506
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B, Off-Balance-Sheet ltems

SN, Description Welat  Amount INPR.) RWA
1 Bills Calleclion 0 -
2 [ Forward Fareign Exchange Contrast 10 | = -
3 | L/C With Maturity Less Than Sk Months [Outstanding 20 = :
Value)
4 [ Guarantee Against International Rated Bank's Counter 20 - -
Guarrantee
f I L/C With Maturity Mere Than Six Months [Outstanding a0 [ —| -
Valuel
[ Bid Bopd, Perfarmance Bond and Underwriting 50 - -
7 1 Loan Sale with Repurchase Agreement 50 | z -
_-E Advance Paymeanl Guarantee ‘JHEI - -
? [ Financlal &nd Other Guarantee 100 [ - -
10 Irrevocable Loan Commitment 100 - - |
n [ Possible Liabilities for Income Tax 100 [ -1 -
12 All Types of Possible Liabilities Including Acceptancs 100 - B
13 | Rediscounted Bills 0 -1 -
14 | Unpaid Portion of Partly Paid Share Investment 100 | ] |
15 | Unpaid Guaranlos Claima 200 - -
16 I Amaunt Tn Be Maintained for Dperational Risk 100 I 37,533,144 I 39,533,146 .
[2% Of Tetal Assets)
[ Total Off-Balance-sheet llems [B) [ 39,533,144 L 39,533,146 .
' Total Risk Weighted Assats [A] + (8] 2031179541 1,937,139,452

Minimum Capital Fund to be Maintained based on the Risk Weighied Assets

!;linimum tapﬂa‘l. i?un;i"tu“he mlﬁt;i.neé based on R.i.slt w-Ei”g.l-ltEdiSSe'IEt - . '.En
Minimum Gapital Fund Required 8.0 % of RWA) _ | B.00%
Minimum Core Capital Reauired [4,0 % of RWA| - 4,00%
Capital Fund maintained lin %] ‘ 128TY%
Core Capital maintzinad |in %] 12.52%

5.3. Classification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The financial assets and liahilities are classified in Amortized Cost, fair value through profit
and loss and fair value through other comprehensive income. The following table exhibit the
classification of financial assets and Liabilities:
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For FY 2079.80

As on Ashadh End 2080

e dmortized | RVTPL | FYTOCI | TotalINPR)
Financial Assets . -
Cash and Cash Equivalents NMTAF6,775 117,195,776
Statutory Balances & due from NRB 11,704,847 11,704,847 |
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions | -
Uerwa'tu.ﬂe Flnancla{ Instrumeants ~
Other Tradi ing Aszels | B
Loans and Advances o MFls & Co-operatives S |
Loans and Advances to Costomers 790,471,901 1.790.471,701
Investment Sacurities - - =
Investiment in Subssl_:ﬁlarias |
Irvestment in Associales
Investmenl Property |
Other Assets 14477696 14477696
Total Financial Assets 1.933,850,21% - - 1.?33.!5&211‘ |

_Financial Liabilities

lflue tx Elanlt and Financial Inshtutions
ﬂue to Nepal Rastra Bank

| Derwatm Financial Ins.hunm n-t:-.

i .D‘?EF'.?"? fram Customers
Ewrruwingﬁ

Cllh er Lizbilities:
ﬂEbI: SEn:urd.lEE IE.E.IJEd

' Tatal Financial Liabilities

208,425,262 | 208,425,262
1,451,887, 507 1,461,889,507

44557826 44,557,826 |
1,704,872,594 > F 1,704,872,596

5.4, Operating Segment information

5.4.1. General information

A component of the Microtinance that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incurlosses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any
other components of the microfinance, whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the
management to make decisions about resources allocation to esach segment and assess ts
performance, and for which discrete financial information |s avaitable is termed as operating

segment,

Based on the nature of the business, transactions, products and services, the management have
identified seven reporting segments of the microfinance for the purpase of financial reporting:

a. Province-1

b. Madhesh Pradesh
c. Bagmali Province
d. Gandaki Province

e. Lumbini Province
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f. Karnali Province

g. Far West Province

The transactions occurred in central office has been considered as Unallocated items.
5.4.2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

5.4.3. Reconciliations of repertable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

la] Revenue

: ;rntli Revenues For Rapnmhl;e Segments i -

I Ofher Revenues .

I Elimination Of Intersegment Revenues 1 -

: Una[lﬂcated_ﬁmnuez - E&IJ_E‘J&..E&:?“

| Entity'S Revenues 340,514,367
(b} Profit or loss

| Total Profit Or Loss For Reportable Segments .
Other Profit Or Loss -

Elimination. Of Inlersegment Profils

Unatiocated Amounts: I 41 31]53
| "
| Prefit Before Income Tax _ MT_E-.I‘.IEEI_
lc] Assets _
 Total Assets For Reportable Segments
Intersegment Assets _
Unallocated Amounts 1,976,657,293
| Entity's Assets 1.976,657,293
[dILiabilities

Total Liabilities for Reportable Segments

Intersegment Liabilities
| Unallocated Amounts 1.704 872,556
' Entity'S Liabilities - 1,704,872,5%4 -

5.4.4. Information about major customers
The Micrafinance does nol have any cuslomer, which generate more Lthan 10% of the enlity’s revenus,
5.5. Share options and share based payrment

The Microfinance does not extend the share options and share based payment to any of jts
employees. Thus, during the reporting period the Microfinance does not have any the transactions
that are to be accounted as per NFRS 2 "Share Based Payments”.

5.6, Contingent liabilities and commitment

Comprehensive disclosure of the contingent liabilities and commitments are made on Note £.26.
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5.7. Related Party Disclosures
5.7.1. List of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The following parties have been identified as the related party transaction as per NAS 24:

S.N. MName i Relatisnship

1 Baburam Thapas | Charmaln .
ﬁ ; .I.ﬂhujraj Bhattara Director
it Prabin Jha Director

__-'i _1_{F_=.ha.1.r [haps Indep.Endenl Director

B ; Mesmu Sherpa | Director
& Urregh Dahal | Public Dirsctor
7 .Tk.la F'ﬂ':.rﬂr'- ﬁ'ras-ur.i Frazal .Pu_l.:;Ei-: ﬁl’rnft-:-r-

Key Management Personnel:
Tejendra Sharma Lamsal : Chief Executive Officer
5.7.2. Transactions with and Payments to Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities are staled as lollows

SN Particulars Allowance total for FY 2079-80
1 Baburam Thapa B0,000.00 |
2 Bhojraj Bhattarsl 98,000.00
A Prabin Jha 1,29,500.00
& | KeshavTheps 1,29.500.00
§ | NeemuSherpa 15,000.00
& | Umesh Dahal 500000
T | Nar-:l:,'aﬂ Prasad Prasai 5._UDJ:I.DI:I
a | Bharati F'_Elthﬂk 0,000 0
Total 4,72,000.00

5.8, Additional disclosure of non-consolidated entities

The microfinance doesn't have any subsidiaries & associates, So, additional disclosure is not
reguired.

5.7, Events after reporting date

No events other than finalization of profit figures and determination of amounts for Income Tax,
Staff Bonus and Related Appropriations are observed which require the adjustment as per NAS
10 "Events occurring after Reporting Period”.
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5.10. Disclosure of Effects of Transition trom Previous GAAP to NFRS

5.10.1 Reconciliation of Eguity

Particulars

Eﬁ:l'nfhii:_t'_&'rﬁi:""' e
undar previous

Data of Transition

Total equity under Previous GAAP

160,667,591 184,061,097

Adjustments for NFRS
"!}11|:|azrrnen1 nn”l;:lan and-aava nces

Fair \'El-i-l.IEf znd employees benefit accounting af staff Io;ln

Lease accounting [

Measuremont of investment securities at fair valug

17,745,087]

Revaluation of property and equipment

Recognition of investmesnt property

Ameriisation of debt securities issued
Defzrred tax
Defined benefil oblinpation of emplovess

Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain

[2,950,618] 472,661

Accrued Interest

7,835,372

22,704,853

Other

Incaome Tax Provesion

|6,475.894]

Statt Bonus Payabels
Liabitity for long-service leave

Tatal Adjustments to Equity

6,884,774 14,956,522

Total equity under Previous NFRSs

147,552,344

179,017,620

5.10.2 Disclosure of EHects of Transitian from Previous GAAP to NFRS

Recenciliation of Profit Under Previous GAAP

Amortisation expense of detl securiies

g & | mnft wldes, 3008 /00

Particulars ‘Explanatorynote | Endof last period presented under
Profit or loss under GAAP 3,489,426 I
Adjustments for NFRS _ _
Interest income 1 I 12869471
Il1|pairr|_'|.=.n1 of lnans and advances .
Employees benefit arn-.'ur.'tizatinn under staff loan
Defined banefil oblination of emploves | |
Gp_e_ratil_'tg lease BRpENSE 2 513?5.613
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Other oparating ncoime

inerast expense

_ﬂepru{ iation and Amortisation 2 {?_ﬁ;ﬁa&_]'
Other I
Staff Bonus
Finance Cost on Leace Lighilities 2 12.864,135] |
Income Tax Expenses a {3,082 636] |
Prowision on Investmenl Securilies
Total Adjustments ta profit or loss 8,071,748 |
Profit or loss under NERSs 11,561,174
Other comprehensive income |
Jotal Comprehanche incomanderHPSs | 86117

Motes:

1. Interest income is recognized on acerual basis. Previously it was recognized at cash basis with
previous GAAP.

2. Lease is recognized with MFR5 14,

3. Related Income lax effect of the interest income accounting.
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5.10.4 Disclosure of Effacts of Transition from Previous GAAP to NFRS

Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

For the year ended 32 Ashadh 2079

Particulars Previcus GAAP Eﬁt‘:ﬂm":ﬂ“ mﬂu PeE
Interest Income 272,673,784 | 12,869,471 285,543,755
Interest Expense 182,371,213 | T 182,471,213
Net Interest Income 90,302571 12,869,471 103,172,042
Fee'and Commissicn Income 246, 372252 - 2h.372,252
’:E'é HI'II:l C-DI'I'!:I'I'IIE‘-'_:T;;FI -E- ;(FI:EJ'IS‘E ] T
Net FH and Cnmmiulun Intome 2:6_3_?_2.152 =1 26,372,252
!'frl_ll_'l_l_.'gl_'nt FII mr.l Gummlumﬂ Income 116,674, EE-E 12,869,471 129,544,295
Net Trading Income - =
Other 'D'FE:I-'&tiI'Ig Income = | -
Tatal Dplrltln; Income 116,674,824 12,849,471 129,544,295
Imgairment chargm'[mersall for loans 2nd other lpsses I 4,011,452 - n;l.LHi.E'.iE
Net Operating Income I 112,663,171 [ 12,869,471 125,532,642
Operating Expense |

;EFEE:II'H'I.E{ Expenses gdl_.f 79, EEI!:IH' I - ﬂg.'.l’i‘if.ﬂ'.r]- |
Other Operating Expenses 37,184,731 | [6.012.678] 31,172,253
Depraciation & Amortization 3,764, 11'5'5 7. 797,565 11.522.080 |
Operating Profit 4,984,895 11,124,384 16,109,279
Non _Upe-mtmg I:nmrna - | - |
hon Operaling E':pense | . Il I || =1
Profit before Income Tax 4, 84,875 11,124,384 16,109.27%
Incame Tax Ex pense ) | .
| Current Tax 1,741,675 647589 8217568 |

| Deferred Tax [lnr:::-mui."ExpL nae 12-&6 ZEI'JI r’j 423, 253_]- 13,6467 4465]

! Profit for the year 3 -&H‘J:Eﬁ 8,071,748 11,561,176

| Diher Comprehensive lncoms - H -

i Tatal Comprehensive Income 3.4BR.L26 | 8,071,748 11,561,174 l

5.10.5 Effect of NFRS5s adoption for statement of cash flows

For the year ended 32 Ashadh 2079

: ; Effect of iransitiol as
Particulars Note | Provious GAAP | © “_Hmslf“““ “““ﬁ’;."ﬁ. P |

Mat cash flows from operating activities 1 181:313.785 T9.800.121 [1.512,464]
Mt cash flows from investing activitias Z 133, 646,732 IB1 S97.001] 195,243, TZ]EI]
Net cash flows from financing activities " (959200 95920 I
Net m:ruasa.n’ida:mis«al in cash and cash 195,056,434 Il 499, 'H:H I'M.‘?'Sﬁ..’.iﬁ'?]
equivalent !
Cash and cash egulvalant at the baginning 3 21T 456 362 (10,004, 885] 207451 478
of the peried _

Cash and cath eauivalent at the end of the F 122399926 M .?I:Iai,EhiEi 110,495,081 '
period
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Comparison of Audited and Unaudited Finagnecial Statement

As on Ashadh 31, 2080

Statement of Financial As per Unaudited | Asper Variance Hessaris for
Position - Finapcial Audited o - ' Variance
Statement Financial | Amount 2l

Assels

Cash and Cash Equivalent 128,929,314 117,196,075 111,733,539| -0 10%  Reclassihication
of CRRE balance to
Ciuse from NREB

Due from Mepal Rastra Bank - 11,704 847 11,7064 BET 0.00% | Reclassification
af CRE balance to
Duser from NREEB

Placement with Bank and - - - 0.00% -

Financial Institutions

Derivative Financials - - - 0.00%

Instrument

Other Trading Azsels - B - 0.00% -

Loans and Advances to MFls - - = 0.00%

and Cooperatives

Loans and Advances to 172306358 | L7ROATR01 18,077,503 1.0%% | Change in

Customers Impairmeant
of Loans to
Custermers and
AIR

Investmant Securities - - - 0.00%,

Current Tax Assets - 2,600,181 2,400,161 0.00%  Recaleulation
of lncame Tax
Provislion

investment Property - - - 0.00%:

Property and Equlpment 18,366,464 34,151,008 17,784,985 96.83%  Due to recagnition

' of Right of use

hezias

Goodwill and Intangible 1,367 083 1,369,083 1 0.00%. Recalculation of

Assets Crprociation

Deferred Tax Assels SHZ.342 2,486,402 103,860 | 3461.15%  Recalculation al
Deferred Tax

Dther Assets 40,501,749 TEATT 694 126,024,063 | -44.20% Dueto
reclassification of
Aesals

Total Assets 962,143 529 | 1,9756,687.293 14,513,764 0.74% . Consequential
effect of above
ilefria.

Liabilities

wfyr wgfae fadt g ., wWidy, S
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Due to Bank and Financsal 1,450 454 64 1,453,454 444) | -100.00%  Dueto

Institutions reclassrfication to
Borrowings

Due o Nepal Rastra Bank - - - 0.00%

Derivatine Financials - . - 0.00%

Instrument

Deposits from Customers 208 425,262 208 425,262 0.29 0.00%

Borrowings = | 451889507 | 1.451,Ba9.H7.4T 0.60%  Due to
reclassification al
Due ton BFIs

Current Tax Liabilities 3,685,374 - [3,685,394) | -100.00%  Recalculation
of lncome Tax
Provision

Provisions - - - 0.00%

Deferred Tax Liabilities - - - 0.00%

Other Liabllities 19.211,014 | 44557824 25,340,112 | 131.53%  Duetg
reclassification of
liability and Lease
Lisbilities

Debt Securitias Issued = - - 0.00% -

Suberdinated Liabilities = = - 0.00% | -

Total Liakilities 1,686 777.0%4 | 1,704,B72.5%6: 20095582 1.19% | Conseguantial
efllect of abave
items.

Equity

Share Capital 250000000 250000000 . D0.00%

Share Prernium - - - 0.00%

Retained Earnings [ 2616201 | (0571092 [4,207,672 46.17%  Due to
recalyulation
ol profil er loss
during the year

Renarves 33,728,034 32355, 788 (1,372 246] -4.07%  [Duetao
recalculation
of profil or loss
during the year

Total Equity Attributable to 277 366,574 271,784,674 [5,581,.618] -201%

Equity Shargholders

Mon Controlling Interest B

Total Equity 7T 566,514 271,784,694 (5,531,318 -2.01%  Consequantial
effect of above
iterms.

Total Equaty and Liabilities 1.962,143 528 | 1,976,657.293 14,513,764 0.74% Conseguental
effect ol above
items.

4% | FritE fiaes, zoussoen
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As per Unaudited | As per bt i g
Statement of Profitand Loss Financial | Audited vwhmﬁh?
Statement Finaricial Amount| % | ¢
AIR considered
Interast Incoms S32,997.497 | 303,857,506 | (229,139,991) | -42.99% | 23 Incame and
Elemnination of
interbranch
Oue ta
; Elemination
Irterest Expenses AFTATE.055 | 230,363,503 | 20730 1.552] -47.37% ol iritarbranch
interest
Met Interest Income 95,322 42 TI494,003 | [21,828.439]  -22.90%
Fas and Commission Income 19,959,457 36,656,861 164697608 B3.646% | Including
! i Cammizsion
mMcames
revious!
Far and Commission Expenses - - . 0.00% ElEIS-‘S-'IfiEﬂ:IIHI'IdEI'
interest lncome
Net Fee and Commission Incame 19,959,459 3,656 861 16,697 402 B3.66% | -
Nl Interest, Fee and Commission i ;
inesrme 115,281,701 100,350,864 15,131,037 -&.465%
Net Trading Income - - - 0.00%
Other Operating [neome - - - 0.00%
Total Bperating Income 115,281,701 110,750,864 15,137,037 -4.45% | -
Due to reversal
Impairment Charge/lreversal] for it
o snd oiherliesss (1,276,578) [1,276,578] a 0.00% | of impairment
charge
Het Operating Income 16558479 | 111427467 15,131,037 -ha0% | -
Opearating Expenses -
Fersannel Expenses 72,453,600 74,374,249 20,840 0.03%
Relazsification of
operating lease
expenses to
" o e " il it [+]
Other Operating Expenses 40426963 | 277313110 | 126954520 | -31.40% .'j“e;ﬁi;l]’ﬁfa"
ol ROU assets
and pther

reclassification

wfyr wgfae fadt g ., wWidy, S
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hs per Unaldited | As par Variance
Statament of Profit and Loss Financial Andited m;mc:_far
Statement Financial Amount 'h WETIEAT
Oue ta
Depreciation & Amartization 34489 841 11,734,935 B.85.094 | 240.16% | depreciationon
ROU Assets
Dperating Profit 328,068 {413,083 |741,919] | -225.9%8 | -
Mon Operating Income = = 5 .00
Non Operating Expenzes - - - 0.00%
Profil before Income Tax 328086 f413,053| [T41.119]) | -225.91%
Income Tax Expenses - - 0.00%
Current Tax - - - 0.00%:
Delerred Tax - (1,385,012 [1,385,012] 0.00%
Conssquential
Profit for the Period 328,065 741,959 G43.893 196% | effact of above
llems.
Consolidated Statemant of Az par Az per Variance Reasons for
Comprehensive Income Unaudited hudited Variance
o : Financial Financial o ; :
Statement Amount L3
Profit/[Loss] for the period 328,085 21,959 16438931 ~196.27%
Other Comprehensive lncome - - - (0.00%
Total Comprehensive Income 325,066 971,959 [643,893]  -196.27% Conseguential
effect of above
items,

A% | i uleEed, 2ol /oes
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Management Team

Mr. Tejendra Sharma Lamsal
Chief Executive Dfficer

Mr. Chandan K. Sardar Mr. Top Bdr. Thapa Mr. Chopkant Chaudhary Mr. Rosan Dangi
Head - Credit and Head - Operation, Monitoring Head - Internal Audit  Head - IT and General
Recovery Department & Finance Department Department Service Department

Monitoring Team

Mr. Pawan Chaudhary Mr. Indra Prasad Pandey

Rupani Area Ohalkebar Area
Mr. Rajeev Basnet Mr. Depak Bdr.Bohara Mr. Hemraj Gelal

Damak Area amak Area Jhumka Area
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